
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

AUGUST 12, 2013 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, 
communications and recommendations that accompany your 
agenda.  Also included are suggested or requested resolutions 
and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been 
prepared by department directors and staff members.  I am 
indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight and professional 
advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as 
your deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
August 12, 2013 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Dan Lewis From Troy Christian Chapel 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 
Months of March & April 2013, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will 
Present a Check in the Amount of $704 to Terry Kennedy, Administrative 
Coordinator for Gift of Life Foundation 1 

C-2 Congratulations to Jeanette Menig, HR Specialist, on Achieving the Designation of 
International Public Management Association Certified Professional (IPMA-CP)  
(Introduced by:  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director) 1 

C-3 Transit Center Status Update – August 2013 (Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City 
Engineer) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Carryover Items 2 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Proposed Amendments – TDDA Tax Increment Financing Plan (Introduced by: 
Terence M. Donnelly, Bond Counsel) 2 



 

 

E-2 Rezoning Application File Number Z 744 – Proposed Belleclaire Condominiums, 
East Side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South Side of Lamb (Part of 4210 
Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One 
Family Attached Residential) District 14 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 15 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 16 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 16 

H-1 No Postponed Items 16 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 16 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals 16 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 
Council Nominations – Parks and Recreation Board 17 

I-3 Request for Closed Session 18 

I-4 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2013-2015 
(Introduced by:  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director) 19 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 19 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 19 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 19 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 19 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – July 22, 2013 ........................................... 19 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 19 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 20 



 

 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 
Portable Conveyor .............................................................................................. 20 

J-5 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 20 

J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – 
Hillmore Street Sanitary Sewer Extension – Project 13.401.13 20 

J-7 Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund20 

J-8 Termination of Planned Unit Development (PUD) Agreement – Troy Plaza PUD – 
West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King – Section 8 21 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 21 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 21 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 21 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 21 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 21 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 21 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 22 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 22 

O. REPORTS: 22 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 22 

a) Downtown Development Authority-Final – May 15, 2013 ................................... 22 
b) Downtown Development Authority-Final – June 19, 2013 .................................. 22 
c) Traffic Committee-Final – June 19, 2013 ........................................................... 22 
d) Planning Commission-Draft – July 9, 2013 ........................................................ 22 
e) Planning Commission-Final – July 9, 2013 ........................................................ 22 
f) Traffic Commission-Draft – July 17, 2013 .......................................................... 22 



 

 

O-2 Department Reports: 22 

a) 2013 Mid-Year Calls for Police Service Report .................................................. 22 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation: 22 

a) To Chief Mayer for Outstanding Service by Police Officer John Julian .............. 22 
b) To Brian Kischnick from Kathleen Donovan, Emerald Lakes Village 

Homeowners Association regarding Excellent Service Provided by the DPW ... 22 
c) To Brian Kischnick from Bharatiya Temple ........................................................ 22 
d) To the City of Troy and Public Works Department from Carol Price regarding 

Storm Cleanup ................................................................................................... 22 
e) To Tim Richnak from Kathleen Donovan, Emerald Lakes Village 

Homeowners Association regarding Excellent Service Provided by the DPW ... 22 
f) To Mayor and Council from Cathleen Russ, Library Director regarding 

Assistance from Community Affairs.................................................................... 22 
g) To Mayor and Council from Cathleen Russ, Library Director regarding 

Assistance from Brian Kischnick, City Manager ................................................. 22 
h) To Chief William Nelson from Richard Dylewski of the Clawson Fire 

Department regarding the Troy Fire Department Participation in the Clawson 
4th of July Parade ............................................................................................... 22 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 22 

O-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of the DTE Gas Company Case 
No U-17216 on August 15, 2013 22 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 22 

P-1  No Study Items 22 

Q. CLOSED SESSION: 22 

Q-1 Closed Session 22 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 23 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 24 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 24 

Monday, August 26, 2013 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 24 
Monday, September 9, 2013 Regular Meeting ...................................................... 24 
Monday, September 23, 2013 Regular Meeting .................................................... 24 
Monday, October 7, 2013 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 24 



 

 

Monday, October 21, 2013 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 24 
Monday, November 11, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 24 
Monday, November 25, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 24 
Monday, December 2, 2013 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 24 
Monday, December 16, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 24 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 24 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Dan Lewis From Troy Christian Chapel 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Dane Slater 

Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of            at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of August 12, 2013, due to           . 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 

Months of March & April 2013, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will 
Present a Check in the Amount of $704 to Terry Kennedy, Administrative 
Coordinator for Gift of Life Foundation  

 
C-2 Congratulations to Jeanette Menig, HR Specialist, on Achieving the Designation of 

International Public Management Association Certified Professional (IPMA-CP)  
(Introduced by:  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director) 

 
C-3 Transit Center Status Update – August 2013 (Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City 

Engineer) 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 2 - 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Proposed Amendments – TDDA Tax Increment Financing Plan (Introduced by: 

Terence M. Donnelly, Bond Counsel) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
 
RESOLUTION A 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2013 AMENDMENTS TO 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN 
AND AMENDMENTS TO ORDINANCE 78 AND ORDINANCE 80 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975, as amended (MCL 
125.1651 et. seq.) (“Act 197”), and Ordinance 78 adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Troy (the “City”) on July 12, 1993, the City Council created the Downtown Development 
Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”); and  
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Act 197 and Ordinance 80 adopted by the City Council of the City of 
December 13, 1993, the City Council approved the Development Plan and Tax Increment 
Financing Plan (the “Plan”), which Plan was subsequently amended in 1998, 2000, 2002 
(twice) and 2007; and  
 
WHEREAS, There have been prepared and submitted to the City Council further amendments 
to the Plan designated “2013 Amendments to Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing 
Plan” (the “2013 Plan Amendments”) with the recommendation from the DDA that the 2013 
Plan Amendments be approved by the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, A public hearing has been held on the 2013 Plan Amendments on this date by the 
City Council pursuant to notice given as required by Act 197 and other applicable law. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the City Council hereby APPROVES extending the existence of the DDA to 

December 31, 2033 and amends Ordinance 78 in the form presented to this meeting. 
2. That the City Council hereby APPROVES the 2013 Plan Amendments in the form 

attached hereto and amends Ordinance 80 in the form presented to this meeting. 
3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of 

this resolution be and the same are RESCINDED. 
 
And,



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 3 - 

 
RESOLUTION B 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED  

$15,500,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX BONDS, SERIES 2013 
 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975, as amended (MCL 
125.1651 et. seq.) (“Act 197”), and Ordinance 78 adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Troy (the “City”) on July 12, 1993, the City Council created the Downtown Development 
Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”); and  
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Act 197 and Ordinance 80 adopted by the City Council of the City of 
December 13, 1993, the City Council approved the Development Plan and Tax Increment 
Financing Plan (the “Plan”), which Plan was subsequently amended in 1998, 2000, 2002 
(twice) and 2007; and 
WHEREAS, The DDA has previously issued the following bonds pursuant to Act 197, secured 
solely by tax increment revenues, as defined in Act 197 (“Tax Increment Revenues”), received 
by the DDA to finance the implementation of a portion of the Plan: (i) Downtown Development 
Authority Development and Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 in the aggregate principal amount of 
$24,000,000 to finance the cost of roadway and streetscape improvements to Big Beaver Road 
and to refinance a portion of the cost of the parking garage adjacent to Somerset North, (ii) 
Community Center Facility Bonds, Series 2002 in the aggregate principal amount of 
$9,700,000 to finance a portion of the cost of constructing the Troy Community Center, and (iii) 
Community Facility Center Junior Lien Bonds, Series 2003 in the aggregate principal amount of 
$4,025,000 to finance a portion of the cost of constructing the Troy Community Center (such 
bonds are collectively referred to as the “DDA Bonds”); and 
WHEREAS, Although the schedules prepared as part of each issue of DDA Bonds predicted 
that there would be sufficient Tax Increment Revenues to cover all of the debt service on the 
DDA Bonds, there has been an unanticipated decline in property values in the Plan’s 
Development Area since 2008, and a corresponding decrease in the available Tax Increment 
Revenues to the extent that they are unable to pay the debt service on the DDA Bonds as of 
November 1, 2013; and  
WHEREAS, In order to prevent a default on the DDA Bonds, the City Council has on this date 
approved (a) an extension of the existence of the DDA to December 31, 2033 and (b) 
amendments to the Plan that (i) extend the Plan to December, 2033 to allow for the capture of 
annual Tax Increment Revenues to ultimately pay off the indebtedness represented by the 
DDA Bonds, (ii) remove certain specified properties that have significantly decreased in value 
from the Plan’s Development Area to enable the DDA to realize a capture of Tax Increment 
Revenues from the revised Development Area in amounts sufficient to pay the annual debt 
service on the Bonds (as hereinafter defined) and (iii) contemplate that the City will issue 
general obligation bonds to refund the DDA Bonds, which although requiring the City to pledge 
its limited tax full faith and credit, will be secured primarily by the Tax Increment Revenues to 
be derived from the revised Development Area for the extended period of time; and 
WHEREAS, The City is authorized under Act 197 to issue the Bonds to pay all or part of the 
cost of implementing the Plan and in connection therewith, refunding the DDA Bonds; and 
WHEREAS, The DDA, by resolution adopted on July 24, 2013, has approved and submitted to 
the City Council an estimate of the Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue available under 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 4 - 

Section 11 of Act 197 to be available for payment of principal and interest on the Bonds, as set 
forth in attached Exhibit A; and  
WHEREAS, The City Manager has recommended that this resolution be adopted in order to 
effect the refunding of all of the DDA Bonds in order to avoid a default on the DDA Bonds. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS – PURPOSE.  Bonds of the City aggregating the 
principal sum of not to exceed Fifteen Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($15,500,000) (the “Bonds”), as determined by the City Manager at the time of sale, 
shall be issued and sold pursuant to the provisions of Act 197, and other applicable 
statutory provisions, for the purpose of paying part of the cost of implementing the Plan 
and in connection therewith, refunding all of the outstanding DDA Bonds. 
 

2. BOND DETAILS.  The Bonds shall be designated “General Obligation Limited Tax 
Bonds, Series 2013;” shall be dated as of the date of delivery thereof to the Underwriter 
(as hereinafter defined); shall be numbered from 1 upwards; shall be fully registered; 
shall be in the denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity at the option of the 
purchaser thereof; shall bear interest at a rate or rates not exceeding 8.00% per annum 
as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale, payable on each May 1 
and November 1 as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; shall be 
mature on November 1 in such years and in such principal amounts as shall be 
determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; and shall be serial bonds and/or 
term bonds as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale. 
 

 
3. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST.  The principal of and interest on the Bonds 

shall be payable in lawful money of the United States.  Principal shall be payable upon 
presentation and surrender of the Bonds to the bond registrar and paying agent as they 
severally mature.  Interest shall be paid to the registered owner of each Bond as shown 
on the registration books at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar 
month preceding the month in which the interest payment is due.  Interest shall be paid 
when due by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond registrar and paying 
agent to the registered owner at the registered address. 
 

4. PRIOR REDEMPTION.  The Bonds shall be subject to mandatory and/or optional 
redemption prior to maturity if so determined by the City Manager at the time of sale and 
if so determined, upon such terms and conditions as shall be approved by the City 
Manager; provided, however, that the redemption premium to be payable in connection 
with any optional redemption of the Bonds shall not exceed 2% of the principal amount 
of any Bond to be redeemed. 

 
5. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.  Initially, one fully-registered Bond for each maturity, in the 

aggregate amount of such maturity, shall be issued in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) for the benefit of other parties (the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 5 - 

“Participants”) in the book-entry-only transfer system of DTC.  In the event the City 
determines that it is in the best interest of the City not to continue the book-entry system 
of transfer or that the interests of the holders of the Bonds might be adversely affected if 
the book-entry system of transfer is continued, the City may notify DTC and the bond 
registrar and paying agent, whereupon DTC will notify the Participants of the availability 
through DTC of Bond certificates.  In such event, the bond registrar and paying agent 
shall deliver, transfer and exchange Bond certificates as requested by DTC and any 
Participant or “beneficial owner” in appropriate amounts in accordance with this 
resolution.  DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the 
Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and the bond registrar and paying agent 
and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law or the City 
may determine that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties and may so advise DTC.  
In either such event, the City shall use reasonable efforts to locate another securities 
depository.  Under such circumstances (if there is no successor securities depository), 
the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall be obligated to deliver Bond 
certificates in accordance with the procedures established by this resolution.  In the 
event Bond certificates are issued, the provisions of this resolution shall apply to, among 
other things, the transfer and exchange of such certificates and the method of payment 
of principal of and interest on such certificates.  Whenever DTC requests the City and 
the bond registrar and paying agent to do so, the City and the bond registrar and paying 
agent shall cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to 
make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the Bonds to any 
Participant having Bonds credited to its DTC account or to arrange for another securities 
depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Bonds. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution to the contrary, so long as any 
Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with 
respect to the principal of, interest on and redemption premium, if any, on such Bonds 
and all notices with respect to the Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC.  
The City Manager is authorized to sign the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations on 
behalf of the City in such form as such official signing the Blanket Issuer Letter of 
Representations deems necessary or appropriate in order to accomplish the issuance of 
the Bonds in accordance with law and this resolution. 
 

6. BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT. The City Manager shall designate, and may 
enter into an agreement with, a bond registrar and paying agent for the Bonds which 
shall be a bank or trust company located in the State of Michigan that is qualified to act 
in such capacity under the laws of the United States of America or the State of Michigan.  
The City Manager from time to time as required may designate a similarly qualified 
successor bond registrar and paying agent. 
 

7. EXECUTION, AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF BONDS.  The Bonds shall be 
executed in the name of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor and 
the City Clerk and authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized 
representative of the bond registrar and paying agent, and the seal of the City (or a 
facsimile thereof) shall be impressed or imprinted on the Bonds.  After the Bonds have 
been executed and authenticated for delivery to the original purchaser thereof, they shall 
be delivered by the City Treasurer or the City Manager to the purchaser of the Bonds 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 6 - 

upon receipt of the purchase price.  Additional Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile 
signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk may be delivered to the bond registrar and 
paying agent for authentication and delivery in connection with the exchange or transfer 
of the Bonds.  The bond registrar and paying agent shall indicate on each Bond the date 
of its authentication. 
 

 
8. EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF BONDS.  Any Bond, upon surrender thereof to the 

bond registrar and paying agent with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the 
bond registrar and paying agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly 
authorized attorney, at the option of the registered owner thereof, may be exchanged for 
Bonds of any other authorized denominations of the same aggregate principal amount 
and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as the surrendered Bond. 

 Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the City, which shall be kept for 
that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon surrender of such Bond 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying 
agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 
Upon the exchange or transfer of any Bond, the bond registrar and paying agent on 
behalf of the City shall cancel the surrendered Bond and shall authenticate and deliver 
to the transferee a new Bond or Bonds of any authorized denomination of the same 
aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as 
the surrendered Bond.  If, at the time the bond registrar and paying agent authenticates 
and delivers a new Bond pursuant to this Section, payment of interest on the Bonds is in 
default, the bond registrar and paying agent shall endorse upon the new Bond the 
following:  “Payment of interest on this bond is in default.  The last date to which interest 
has been paid is ___________, ____.” 

 The City and the bond registrar and paying agent may deem and treat the person in 
whose name any Bond shall be registered upon the books of the City as the absolute 
owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of 
receiving payment of the principal of and interest on such Bond and for all other 
purposes, and all payments made to any such registered owner, or upon his order, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this resolution shall be valid and effectual 
to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so 
paid, and neither the City nor the bond registrar and paying agent shall be affected by 
any notice to the contrary.  The City agrees to indemnify and save the bond registrar and 
paying agent harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense, 
judgment or liability incurred by it, acting in good faith and without negligence hereunder, 
in so treating such registered owner. 

 For every exchange or transfer of Bonds, the City or the bond registrar and paying agent 
may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental 
charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or 
sums shall be paid by the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition 
precedent to the exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer. 

 The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange Bonds 
or portions of Bonds that have been selected for redemption. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 7 - 

9. FORM OF BONDS.  The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 
CITY OF TROY 

GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX BOND, SERIES 2013 
 
 
INTEREST RATE 

 
MATURITY DATE 

 
DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE 

 
CUSIP 

 
    

 
Registered Owner:  
 
 
Principal Amount:  
 
 
 The City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the “City”), acknowledges itself 
indebted to, and for value received hereby promises to pay to, the Registered Owner identified 
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the Maturity Date 
specified above, unless redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter provided, upon presentation and 
surrender of this bond at the corporate trust office of _________________________________, 
the bond registrar and paying agent, located in ________, Michigan, or at such successor bond 
registrar and paying agent as may be designated pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter 
defined), and to pay to the Registered Owner, as shown on the registration books at the close 
of business on the 15th day of the calendar month preceding the month in which an interest 
payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond registrar and paying 
agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the Registered Owner at the registered address, 
interest on such Principal Amount from the Date of Original Issue set forth above, or such later 
date through which interest has been paid, until the City’s obligation with respect to the 
payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the rate per annum specified above.  
Interest is payable on the first days of May and November in each year, commencing on 
__________, 201_. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America. 

 This bond is one of a series of bonds aggregating the principal sum of 
___________________________________ Dollars ($_________) issued by the City under 
and pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and Statutes of Michigan (especially 
Act No. 197, Public Acts of 1975, as amended (“Act 197”)) and a resolution adopted by the City 
Council of the City on August 12, 2013 (the “Resolution”), for the purpose of paying part of the 
cost of implementing the Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan (the “Plan”) of 
the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”) and in connection 
therewith, refunding all of the outstanding bonds of the DDA originally issued to pay such cost.  
The tax increment revenues and other revenue to be received by the DDA pursuant to Section 
11 of Act 197 and the full faith and credit of the City have been pledged to the prompt payment 
of the principal of and interest on this bond.  In the event and to the extent that such tax 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 8 - 

increment revenues and other revenue are not sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on 
the bonds of this series, such principal and interest are payable as a first budget obligation of 
the City from its general funds. Taxes imposed by the City are subject to constitutional, 
statutory and charter tax limitations. 

 This bond is transferable, as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the City 
kept for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon the surrender of this bond 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent 
duly executed by the Registered Owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon the 
exchange or transfer of this bond a new bond or bonds of any authorized denomination, in the 
same aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity, shall be 
authenticated and delivered to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the 
Resolution, and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided.  Bonds so authenticated 
and delivered shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity. 

 The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange bonds 
or portions of bonds that have been selected for redemption. 

MANDATORY PRIOR REDEMPTION 
 
 Bonds maturing in the year ____ are subject to mandatory prior redemption at par and 
accrued interest as follows: 

 
Redemption Date 

Principal Amount of 
Bonds to be Redeemed 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 Bonds or portions of bonds to be redeemed by mandatory redemption shall be selected 
by lot. 

(REPEAT IF MORE THAN ONE TERM BOND) 
 
 

OPTIONAL PRIOR REDEMPTION 
 
 Bonds maturing prior to __________, ____, are not subject to redemption prior to 
maturity.  Bonds maturing on and after __________, ____, are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity at the option of the City, in such order as shall be determined by the City, on any one 
or more interest payment dates on and after __________, ____.  Bonds of a denomination 
greater than $5,000 may be partially redeemed in the amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof.  If less than all of the bonds maturing in any year are to be redeemed, the bonds or 
portions of bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot.  The redemption price shall be the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 9 - 

par value of the bond or portion of the bond called to be redeemed plus interest to the date 
fixed for redemption and a premium as follows: 

 % of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but 
prior to __________, ____; 

 
 % of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but 

prior to __________, ____; 
 
 % of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but 

prior to __________, ____. 
 
 Not less than thirty but not more than sixty days’ notice of redemption shall be given to 
the Registered Owner of bonds called to be redeemed by mail to each Registered Owner at the 
registered address.  Bonds or portions of bonds called for redemption shall not bear interest on 
and after the date fixed for redemption, provided funds are on hand with the bond registrar and 
paying agent to redeem the same. 

 It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to 
exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the bonds of this series, 
existed, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required 
by law, and that the total indebtedness of the City, including the series of bonds of which this 
bond is one, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Troy, State of Michigan, by its City Council, has 
caused this bond to be executed in its name by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor 
and the City Clerk and its corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof) to be impressed or imprinted 
thereon.  This bond shall not be valid unless the Certificate of Authentication has been 
manually executed by an authorized representative of the bond registrar and paying agent. 
 

CITY OF TROY 
 
 (SEAL) 
 
 
By:_______________________________ By:______________________________ 
 City Clerk   Mayor 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
 
 This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution. 
 
 
       
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 10 - 

 
By:       
 Authorized Representative 
 
 
AUTHENTICATION DATE:  
 
 
 

ASSIGNMENT 
 
 For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
(please print or type name, address and taxpayer identification number of transferee) the within 
bond and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
attorney to transfer the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of 
substitution in the premises.   
 
 
Dated: ____________________  __________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature Guaranteed:   __________________________________________ 
 
 Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a 
Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 
 
10. APPROVAL OF ESTIMATE OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES.  The estimate of the 

Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue available under Section 11 of Act 197 to be 
available for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, as approved by 
the DDA and as set forth in attached Exhibit A, is approved. 
 

11. SECURITY.  The Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue to be available to the 
DDA under Section 11 of Act 197 are pledged for the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds.  The Bonds shall also be limited tax general obligations of the 
City.  The full faith and credit of the City are also pledged for the prompt payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same shall become due.  Each year the 
City shall be obligated, as a first budget obligation, to advance moneys from its general 
funds or to levy ad valorem property taxes on all taxable property within its corporate 
boundaries to pay such principal and interest as the same become due in the event and 
to the extent that the Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue to be available to the 
DDA under Section 11 of Act 197 are not sufficient to make such payment.    The ability 
of the City to raise funds to pay such amounts is subject to applicable constitutional, 
statutory and charter limitations on the taxing power of the City. 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 11 - 

12. DEFEASANCE.  In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or 
obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or 
a combination thereof, the principal of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come 
due at times and in amounts sufficient to pay, at maturity or irrevocable call for earlier 
optional redemption, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, shall 
have been deposited in trust, this resolution shall be defeased and the owners of the 
Bonds shall have no further rights under this resolution except to receive payment of the 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds from the cash or securities 
deposited in trust and the interest and gains thereon and to transfer and exchange 
Bonds as provided herein. 
 

13. PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND.  There is hereby established for the Bonds a 
Principal and Interest Fund that shall be either a separate fund or part of a common fund 
as permitted by law.  From the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, there shall be set 
aside in the Principal and Interest Fund any accrued interest received from the 
purchaser at the time of delivery of the same.  The Tax Increment Revenues and other 
revenue available to the DDA under Section 11 of Act 197 and other available moneys 
of the City, if any, to be used to pay the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds shall be deposited in the Principal and Interest Fund and so long as the principal 
or interest on the Bonds remain unpaid, no moneys shall be withdrawn from such fund 
except to pay such principal and interest or to pay from any investment earnings on such 
fund the fees and expenses of the bond registrar and paying agent. 

 
14. PAYMENT OF COSTS OF ISSUANCE -- ESCROW FUND.  The remainder of the 

proceeds of the Bonds shall be used, together with available moneys of the DDA, if any, 
to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds and to refund the DDA Bonds.  After the costs 
of issuance have been paid or provided for the remaining proceeds and DDA moneys, in 
an amount determined by the City Manager at the time of sale of the Bonds, shall be 
used to establish an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”) consisting of cash and 
investments in direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which 
are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America or other obligations the 
principal of and interest on which are fully secured by the foregoing and used to pay the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premiums, if any, on the Prior Bonds.  The 
Escrow Fund shall be held by an escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) pursuant to an 
Escrow Agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”), which irrevocably shall direct the Escrow 
Agent to take all necessary steps to pay the principal of and interest on the Prior Bonds 
being refunded when due and to call such Prior Bonds for redemption at such time as 
shall be determined in the Escrow Agreement.  The City Manager is authorized to select 
the Escrow Agent and enter into the Escrow Agreement on behalf of the City.  The 
amounts held in the Escrow Fund shall be such that the cash and the investments and 
the income received on the investments will be sufficient without reinvestment to pay the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premiums, if any, on the DDA Bonds when due 
at maturity or call for redemption as required by the Escrow Agreement. 
 

15. APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY.  The issuance and sale of the Bonds 
shall be subject to permission being granted therefor by the Department of Treasury of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 12 - 

the State of Michigan as provided in Act 34.  If necessary, the City Manager is 
authorized to file an application with the Department of Treasury for approval of the 
Bonds. 

 
16. SALE, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF BONDS.  The Bonds 

shall be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale as hereinafter provided, and it is hereby 
determined that such negotiated sale is in the best interests of the City and is calculated 
to provide the maximum flexibility in pricing the Bonds and to result in the lowest interest 
cost to the City.  The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Bond Purchase 
Agreement with Fifth Third Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriter”), which Bond Purchase 
Agreement shall set forth the principal amount of the Bonds, principal maturities and 
dates, interest rates and interest payment dates, redemption provisions, if any, purchase 
price to be paid by the Underwriter with respect to the Bonds and such other terms and 
provisions as the City Manager determines to be necessary or appropriate in connection 
with the sale of the Bonds.  The Bond Purchase Agreement and the terms of the Bonds 
set forth therein shall be approved by an order adopted by the City Manager at the time 
of the sale of the Bonds.  The Mayor, the City Clerk, the City Manager and the City 
Treasurer are each hereby authorized to do all things necessary to effectuate the sale, 
issuance, delivery, transfer and exchange of the Bonds in accordance with the 
provisions of this resolution.  In making the determination in the order authorizing the 
sale of the Bonds and in the Bond Purchase Agreement with respect to principal 
maturities and dates, interest rates, purchase price of the Bonds and compensation to 
be paid to the Underwriter, the City Manager shall be limited as follows: 

(a) The interest rate on any Bond shall not exceed 8.00% per annum. 
(b) The final maturity date of the Bonds shall not be later than November 1, 2033. 
(c) The purchase price of the Bonds shall not be less than 97% of the principal 

amount thereof. 
(d) The Underwriter’s discount with respect to the Bonds or the compensation to be 

paid to the Underwriter shall not exceed 1.00% of the principal amount of the 
Bonds. 

 
17. REPLACEMENT OF BONDS.  Upon receipt by the City Clerk of proof of ownership of an 

unmatured Bond, of satisfactory evidence that the Bond has been lost, apparently 
destroyed or wrongfully taken and of security or indemnity that complies with applicable 
law and is satisfactory to the City Clerk, the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar 
and paying agent to deliver a new executed Bond to replace the Bond lost, apparently 
destroyed or wrongfully taken in compliance with applicable law.  In the event an 
outstanding matured Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the City 
Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and paying agent to pay the Bond without 
presentation upon the receipt of the same documentation required for the delivery of a 
replacement Bond.  The bond registrar and paying agent, for each new Bond delivered or 
paid without presentation as provided above, shall require the payment of expenses, 
including counsel fees, which may be incurred by the bond registrar and paying agent 
and the City in the premises.  Any Bond delivered pursuant to the provisions of this 
Section 17 in lieu of any Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken shall be of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 13 - 

the same form and tenor and be secured in the same manner as the Bond in substitution 
for which such Bond was delivered. 
 

18. TAX COVENANT.  The City covenants to comply with all applicable requirements of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), necessary to assure that the 
interest on the Bonds will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes.  The Mayor, the City Clerk, the City Manager, the City Treasurer 
and other appropriate officials of the City are authorized to do all things necessary 
(including the making of such covenants of the City as shall be appropriate) to assure 
that the interest on the Bonds will be and will remain excludable from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes. 

 
19. OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  The City Manager is authorized to cause the preparation of an 

official statement for the Bonds for purposes of enabling compliance with Rule 15c2-12 
issued under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”) and to do all 
other things necessary to enable compliance with the Rule.  After the award of the 
Bonds, the City will provide copies of a “final official statement” (as defined in paragraph 
(e)(3) of the Rule) on a timely basis and in reasonable quantity as requested by the 
Underwriter to enable the Underwriter to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the 
rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

 
20. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are authorized to execute 

and deliver in the name and on behalf of the City a continuing disclosure certificate to 
comply with the requirements for a continuing disclosure undertaking of the City pursuant 
to paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, and amendments to such certificate from time to time in 
accordance with the terms of such certificate (the certificate and any amendments 
thereto are collectively referred to herein as the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”).  The 
City hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the 
provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

 
21. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.  The following are appointed to act in the following 

capacities with respect to the Bonds: 

As registered municipal advisor: Bendzinski & Co., Municipal Finance Advisors 
     Detroit, Michigan 

As Underwriter:   Fifth Third Securities, Inc. 
     Cincinnati, Ohio 
 

As bond counsel: Dickinson Wright PLLC 
 Troy, Michigan 
 

22. CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they 
may be in conflict herewith are rescinded. 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 14 - 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Estimate of Anticipated Tax Increment Revenues 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 

 
  Amount 

2015 $1,023,834 
2016 978,617 
2017 894,896 
2018 895,059 
2019 895,227 
2020 954,541 
2021 1,014,449 
2022 1,074,956 
2023 1,136,068 
2024 1,197,791 
2025 1,322,472 
2026 1,449,646 
2027 1,579,364 
2028 1,711,677 
2029 1,846,635 
2030 1,984,293 
2031 2,124,703 
2032 2,267,922 
2033 2,414,006 
2034 2,563,011 

 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
E-2 Rezoning Application File Number Z 744 – Proposed Belleclaire Condominiums, 

East Side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South Side of Lamb (Part of 4210 
Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One 
Family Attached Residential) District 

 
CLICK HERE  to view the Resolution Attachment:  Site Plan & Rezoning Plan 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from R-1C to RT, File Number Z-744, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Site Plan & Rezoning Plan. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The proposed rezoning from R-1C to RT is hereby 
APPROVED. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 15 - 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda or Study 
items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the 
Public Comment for Items On the Agenda portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda portion of the 
Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide 
his or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). 
If the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then 
the speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City 
Council members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 

The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather 
than to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is 
required to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 16 - 

of the meeting. There are two Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the 
Agenda, speakers can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda, 
or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Speakers can sign up to address all other 
topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in 
front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there is one minute of speaker time remaining, and 
turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
 
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments 
about any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, 
including having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the 
deletion of speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be 
careful to avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and 
defamation.   
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum 
befitting this great City. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2013-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 17 - 

Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015 Paul McCown (Alternate) 

 
Term currently held by: Vacancy – David Eisenbacher 

Appointed to Full Member Term  
 

 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – Parks and Recreation Board 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 
 
b) City Council Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School Board Member: 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 3 

Anderson Carol  12/31/2099   
Fejes Kathleen M 9/30/2012 9/30/2013   
Gazetti Tod 9/14/2012 9/30/2013  No Reappointment 

Hauff Gary 2/6/2014 7/31/2013 Troy School 
Dist. Rep.   

Huber Laurie G 2/8/2014 9/30/2015   

Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 1/20/2014 9/30/2015 ZBA (Alt.) exp 
1/31/2015  

Kovacs Meaghan 3/25/2010 9/30/2014   
Stewart Jeffrey L 9/30/2011 9/30/2013   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 18 - 

Yelamanchi Aditya 6/5/2014 7/31/2013 Student Rep. No Reappointment 
Zikakis Janice 11/11/2013 9/30/2014   

 

 
Nominations to the Parks and Recreation Board: 
 
Term Expires:  07/31/2014  
 Term currently held by: Gary Hauff 
 
Term Expires:  07/31/2014  
 Term currently held by: Aditya Yelamanchi 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Baker Julia (Judy) 5/7/2015  
Boudon Frank 5/15/2015  
Brandstetter Tim 5/1/2015  
Gauri Kul B 11/22/2013  
Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014  

Knight P. Terry 1/4/2014 DDA exp 9/30/2015;  
Personnel Bd exp 4/30/2015 

Rosenberg Michael 4/19/2015  
Steele John 9/27/2013  

Toth Steve 10/3/2013 Animal Control Appeal Bd. exp 
9/30/2014 

Viola Vincent J 11/16/2013  
 

 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session pursuant to MCL 15.268 
(a) - City Attorney evaluation and MCL15.268(h) (MCL15.243(g)). 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 19 - 

 
I-4 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2013-2015 

(Introduced by:  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That a collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and MAP for the 
period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015 is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the City 
of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – July 22, 2013 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 20 - 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Portable 

Conveyor  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish one (1) portable 
stainless steel conveyor unit to the low bidder meeting specifications, Kimco USA Inc. of Marshall 
IL, for an estimated total price $82,956.20 as per the prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened August 1, 2013, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
J-5 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby WAIVES the no parking 
restrictions on the East side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to 
Congregation Shir Tikvah to the entrance to Boulan Park, on Wednesday, September 4, 2013, 
7:00 p.m.-11:00 p.m.; Thursday, September 5, 2013, 9:00 a.m.-5:00 p.m.; Friday, September 
13, 2013, 7:00 p.m.-11:00 p.m.; and, Saturday, September 14, 2013, 9:00 a.m.-9:00 p.m. 
 
J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – 

Hillmore Street Sanitary Sewer Extension – Project 13.401.13 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Kevin Baird, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of Sanitary Sewer and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7 Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council for the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, hereby 
AUTHORIZES the City of Troy’s Parks, Streets, and Drains Divisions, to seek reimbursement 
for an amount not to exceed $11,956.08, from Oakland County’s West Nile Virus Fund for the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 21 - 

expenditures incurred while instituting proactive public health measures used to reduce the 
population of mosquitoes in the environment.  
 
J-8 Termination of Planned Unit Development (PUD) Agreement – Troy Plaza PUD – 

West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King – Section 8 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-08-      
 
WHEREAS, On October 8, 2012, City Council conditionally rezoned the subject property from 
PUD (Planned Unit Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB (Community Business) 
districts; and  
 
WHEREAS, The resolution which approved the rezoning also rescinded and abandoned the 
Planned Unit Development and related plans and documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a request from Tinelle Properties, LLC, owner of the 
subject property, to record a formal termination of the PUD Agreement that previously 
controlled the subject property with the Oakland County Register of Deeds. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign the attached document on behalf of the City of Troy, acknowledging the 
Termination of Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development Agreement. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS the City to record the 
executed Termination of Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development Agreement with the Oakland 
County Register of Deeds. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 22 - 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Downtown Development Authority-Final – May 15, 2013 
b) Downtown Development Authority-Final – June 19, 2013 
c) Traffic Committee-Final – June 19, 2013 
d) Planning Commission-Draft – July 9, 2013 
e) Planning Commission-Final – July 9, 2013 
f) Traffic Commission-Draft – July 17, 2013   
 
O-2 Department Reports:   
a) 2013 Mid-Year Calls for Police Service Report  
 
O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  
a) To Chief Mayer for Outstanding Service by Police Officer John Julian 
b) To Brian Kischnick from Kathleen Donovan, Emerald Lakes Village Homeowners 

Association regarding Excellent Service Provided by the DPW 
c) To Brian Kischnick from Bharatiya Temple 
d) To the City of Troy and Public Works Department from Carol Price regarding Storm 

Cleanup 
e) To Tim Richnak from Kathleen Donovan, Emerald Lakes Village Homeowners 

Association regarding Excellent Service Provided by the DPW 
f) To Mayor and Council from Cathleen Russ, Library Director regarding Assistance from 

Community Affairs 
g) To Mayor and Council from Cathleen Russ, Library Director regarding Assistance from 

Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
h) To Chief William Nelson from Richard Dylewski of the Clawson Fire Department 

regarding the Troy Fire Department Participation in the Clawson 4th of July Parade 
 
O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
O-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of the DTE Gas Company Case 

No U-17216 on August 15, 2013 
 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 
P-1  No Study Items  
 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1 Closed Session 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 23 - 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 12, 2013 
 

- 24 - 

 
FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, August 26, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 9, 2013 ............................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 23, 2013 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 7, 2013 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 21, 2013 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 11, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 25, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 2, 2013 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 16, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 



1 

 

 
August 12, 2013 
 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer/Project Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Transit Center Status Report – August 2013 
 
This memo provides an update on the status of reimbursements, construction, and resolution of 
Transit Center property issues.  
 
Funding 
 
After participating in three conference calls with Federal Rail Administration (FRA), MDOT and City of 
Troy, and several months of tireless work by the project team, the process of moving forward with the 
Transit Center financials is becoming clearer.  Last week we were successful in getting the FRA to 
resume project reimbursements.  This was made possible by laying out for FRA and MDOT the 
funding and plan for resolving the property issue.  Within hours of our conference call FRA informed 
MDOT that they were resuming project reimbursements.  MDOT has informed us that they will begin 
processing them immediately.          
 
Congressman Gary Peters continues to support the Transit Center project and the use of funding he 
helped secure in 2010; $1.3 million in appropriations administered by the Federal Transit 
Administration and $300,000 match from MDOT, $1.6 million total.  Mr. Peters wrote a letter to MDOT 
Director, Mr. Kirk Steudle, supporting the repurposing of the funds for land acquisition in Troy (copy 
attached).  This will provide the foundation to successfully resolve the property issue and complete 
the project.  There are many technical details to work through with FTA, MDOT and SMART, 
however, we work on these every day and we are confident that all details will be satisfactorily 
addressed.       
 
Status of the Lawsuit 
 
The City has filed its application for leave to appeal to the Michigan Supreme Court.  It is unknown 
when the Michigan Supreme Court will issue its decision. 
 
 
    

CCOOUUNNCCIILL    RREEPPOORRTT  
 

  

stewartc
Text Box
C-03



2 

 

 
Property Acquisition Plan 
 
City Administration is hesitant to provide details of the City’s legal strategies in an open forum.  We 
have identified and evaluated all legal options.  We are moving forward with the appraisal process as 
this is a necessary component of any settlement and securing federal funds for property acquisition.  
      
Construction 
 
Construction is moving along on schedule and within budget.  The project is approximately 75% 
complete.  The building, tower and bridge exteriors are complete including glass and doors.  The 
platform is complete except for installation of the shelter and signage.  Doyle Drive is complete and 
scheduled to open on Monday, August 12th.  Sidewalks and concrete flatwork in the plaza are 
scheduled for completion in approximately two weeks.  Work is progressing on interior finishes, 
mechanical, electrical, elevators, light fixtures and final trim.  The start of landscape work is 
approximately two weeks out.  Final finish work and project close out is scheduled for September. 
 
Operation and Maintenance  
 
Staff has been negotiating a Lease Agreement with AMTRAK for more than a year, with most of the 
focus centered on what portion of the Operation and Maintenance (O&M) costs would be borne by 
AMTRAK.  The Common Area Expense allocation issue remains outstanding.  As discussion on that 
issue with AMTRAK continues, we continue to attempt to determine the status of implementation of 
the Passenger Rail Investment and Improvement Act of 2008 (PRIIA) in Michigan for 2014 and to 
confirm that MDOT will in fact become responsible for 100% of Amtrak’s operation and maintenance 
expenses beginning in 2014.  We have not had resolution on this at this point. 
 
The negotiations stalled and were somewhat complicated by the temporary suspension of 
reimbursements for construction, for which entering into an agreement of this kind with AMTRAK or 
anyone would be impossible until reimbursements resumed.  Now that reimbursements have re-
started, staff will refocus their attention on negotiations with AMTRAK and MDOT to complete the 
agreement and bring it to Council for approval in the near future. 
 
Business Opportunities 
 
There continues to be opportunities for the business community to participate in the Transit Center.  
Opportunities to generate additional revenue for the Transit Center include naming rights, 
sponsorships, and other promotional programs.  With a new Troy Chamber President now on board, 
discussions related to any potential Chamber role in these business opportunities will continue. 
 
In order to effectively pursue Transit Center business opportunities such as naming rights and 
sponsorships, the City of Troy is prepared to draft and issue Requests for Proposals and any 
necessary bid documents.  However, from a strategic standpoint, City Administration does not 
recommend issuing any RFPs for business opportunities until there is a satisfactory resolution to the 
Transit Center continuity of ownership issue.  
 
City Administration will continue to work with the Troy Chamber and our business community partners 
to identify potential Transit Center revenue sources from business opportunities. 
 
G:\Transit Center\Status Reports to Council\August_2013_Status ReportR1.docx 



 
Transit Center Construction Photos 

August 2013 
 

 
1 

Platform 

 

 

Doyle Drive Concrete 

 



 
Transit Center Construction Photos 

August 2013 
 

 
2 

Building & East Tower 

 
Doyle Drive Concrete 

 



 
Transit Center Construction Photos 

August 2013 
 

 
3 

 

East Tower & Bridge 
 

 
 

 





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  
  

 
Date:  August 9, 2013 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
  
From:  Brian M. Kischnick, City Manager 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 

  Nino Licari, City Assessor    
 
Subject:        (1)   Public Hearing – Troy Downtown Development Authority, Amendments to  

Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 
 

(2)   Amendments to Ordinance 78 and Ordinance 80 
 
(3)   Issuance of General Obligation Bonds 
 
(Introduced by:  Terence M. Donnelly Bond Counsel) 

 
 
History 
 
The TDDA is experiencing a dramatic reduction in tax increment capture.  Furthermore, in 2015 the 
projection is for the TDDA to be in a negative capture situation.  Without changes, the TDDA will not 
have sufficient revenue to cover the existing debt service.  We have determined that defaulting on the 
TDDA bond payments is not an option. 
 
City Administration proposed a solution to the bond default situation by utilizing the State of Michigan 
Public Act 197 (Downtown Development Authority) and municipal bond funding mechanisms to adjust 
to the changing economic realities. It should also be noted that the current TDDA Development Plan 
and Tax Increment Financing Plan expire in 2018.  City Council, TDDA and City Administration have 
collaboratively laid the foundation to resolve this problem.  
 
On June 19, 2013 the TDDA approved amendments to the Development Plan and Tax Increment 
Financing Plan (Attachment A) and recommended approval of the 2013 Plan Amendments to the City 
Council of the City of Troy.  These Plan Amendments will limit the TDDA to expend funds only for 
debt retirement, maintenance and administrative expenditures.  City Council alone retains the 
ultimate authority to adopt future Plan Amendments to give the TDDA authority to expend funds on 
other functions such as construction improvements or economic development activities.  If City 
Council approves the Plan Amendments, they would provide for the following: 
 

1. Extension of the duration of the TDDA and Development and Tax Increment Financing Plans 
to December 2033. 

stewartc
Text Box
E-01



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  
  

2. Revision of the Development Area for the Plan by removing certain specified properties, with 
the result that the TDDA is projected to capture sufficient tax increments to pay the principal 
and interest on the proposed City Bonds.   

 
On July 24, 2013 the TDDA approved the Resolution Approving Estimate of Anticipated Tax 
Increment Revenues.  According to these estimates, the anticipated tax increment revenues to be 
received by the TDDA after the approval of the 2013 Plan Amendments will be sufficient to pay the 
principal and interest on the City Bonds. 
 
As required by State Statute, City Council scheduled a Public Hearing for August 12, 2013, 7:30 P.M. 
at City Hall, to consider the proposed Plan Amendments.  Further, during the meeting City Council 
will also consider amending Ordinance 78 and Ordinance 80 to reflect the revised Plans.  
Additionally, City Council would also need to pass a resolution authorizing issuance of general 
obligation limited tax bonds.   
 
Robert Bendzinski, our Municipal Financial Advisor provided an opinion regarding what type of impact 
the filing of bankruptcy proceedings by the City of Detroit will have on the City of Troy’s ability to 
refinance the outstanding TDDA bonds (Attachment C).  Mr. Bendzinski indicated that various 
underwriters and bond purchasers have not experienced an interest rate penalty to date.  However, 
Mr. Bendzinski stated that as the City of Detroit case moves through court, he cannot predict what 
type of penalty or premium could be attached to any type of Michigan municipal bonds that are sold in 
the future.  He will continue to keep the City of Troy apprised of any changes in the municipal bond 
market due to the City of Detroit bankruptcy. 
 
Financial 
 
The tax increment revenues received by the TDDA provided by the Plan, as amended by the 2013 
Plan Amendments, will be the first source of payment of the City Bonds and the limited tax full faith 
and credit pledge of the City will be the secondary security for the City Bonds. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that City Council approve the attached resolutions.  These 
resolutions accomplish the following: 
 

1. Approve proposed 2013 Amendments to the TDDA Development Plan and Tax Increment 
Financing Plan (Attachment A), and also the amendments to Ordinance 78 and Ordinance 80 
to reflect the revisions in the revised Plan.   

2. Amend Ordinance 78, which sets the TDDA expiration date of December 31, 2033, or upon the 
retirement of all bonded indebtedness issued by the City or the TDDA. 

3. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds. This 
will finance the cost of the Plan and will refund the outstanding bonds issued by the TDDA in 
2001, 2002, and 2003. 

 



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  
  

 
Attachments 
 

A. 2013 Amendments to Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 
B. Certified TDDA Resolution Approving Estimate of Anticipated Tax Increment Revenues  
C. Robert J. Bendzinski correspondence 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C:  Robert J. Bendzinski, Municipal Financial Advisor 
     Terrence M. Donnelly, Bond Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
08.12.13 – Public Hearing – Troy Downtown Development Authority Amendments to Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 



  Draft 
  6/7/13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

         2013 Amendments 

              To Development Plan and 
Tax Increment Financing Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
 of the City of Troy

Attachment A.



 

 2 

                    
 
 

 BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 
 
A. Purpose of the Downtown Development Authority Act 
 

Act 197 of Public Acts of 1975, as amended (MCL 125.1651 et. seq.), of the State of 
Michigan, commonly referred to as the Downtown Development Authority Act (“Act 197”) 
authorizes the establishment of a downtown development authority and was created in 
part to correct and prevent deterioration of business districts; to promote economic 
growth and revitalization; to encourage historic preservation; to authorize the acquisition 
and disposal of interests in real and personal property; to authorize the levy and 
collection of taxes; the issuance of bonds and the use of  tax increment financing to 
finance downtown development contained in locally adopted development plans. 
 
Act 197 seeks to attack problems of urban decline, strengthen existing areas and 
encourage new private developments in Michigan’s downtown communities. It seeks to 
accomplish this goal by providing these communities with the necessary legal, monetary 
and organizational tools to revitalize downtown districts either through publicly initiated 
projects or in concert with private developments. The method chosen by downtown 
development authorities to make use of these tools depends on the problems and 
opportunities facing the district and the development priorities established by the 
community for the revitalization of the business area. 

 
B. Creation of the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Troy 
 

In July of 1993, the Troy City Council adopted Ordinance 78, which created the 
Downtown Development Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”).  The DDA was given 
all of the powers and duties prescribed for a downtown development authority pursuant to 
Act 197. 

 
C. Basis for the Tax Increment Financing Plan and Development Plan 
 

Act 197 provides the legal mechanism for local officials to address the need for economic 
development in the business district. In Troy, the Downtown District of the DDA can be 
generally described as the commercial area along Big Beaver Road from Rochester 
Road on the east to Newport on the west (the “Downtown District”).  The Development 
Area was subsequently established as coterminous with the boundaries of the Downtown 
District.  A development plan and a tax increment-financing plan were adopted for the 
purpose of implementing specific development programs and/or projects in the 
Development Area. 

 
For purposes of financing activities of a downtown development authority within a 
downtown district, Act 197 provides for establishment of a tax increment financing plan.  
By definition, a tax increment financing plan seeks to capitalize on and make use of the 
increased tax base created by economic development within the boundaries of a 
downtown district.  The tax increment financing plan is required to include a development 
plan that sets forth the improvements and projects to be financed by the tax increment 
financing plan. 

 

Attachment A.



 

 3 

D. The Current DDA Development Plan and the DDA Tax Increment Financing Plan 
 

The Development Plan (the “Development Plan”) and the Tax Increment Financing Plan 
(the “Tax Increment Financing Plan” and together with the Development Plan, the “Plan”) 
of the DDA were initially approved and adopted by the Troy City Council on December 
13, 1993.  The Development Plan included Development Plan #1, which provided for 
reconstruction and improvements to Big Beaver Road and a public parking deck.  The 
Tax Increment Financing Plan provided for capture and use by the DDA of all tax 
increment revenues generated from the captured assessed value of all taxable real and 
personal property within the Development Area for purposes of the Development Plan. 
 
The Plan was subsequently amended on five different occasions. 
 
An amendment to the Development Plan was approved and adopted by the City on 
September 28, 1998 (referred to for purposes hereof as “Development Plan #2”).  
Development Plan #2 incorporated the area north of Cunningham Road for purposes of 
the construction of a data center for K-Mart and the proposed civic center site at Big 
Beaver and I-75. 

 
 Development Plan #2 expressly incorporated and restated the Tax Increment Financing 

Plan previously adopted by the DDA to finance development programs and projects 
within the Downtown District. 

 
This second amendment to the Development Plan (referred to for purposes hereof as 
“Development Plan #3”), expressly incorporated and restated the development programs 
and projects described in Development Plan #1 and Development Plan #2 and described 
two additional major road projects including the widening of Big Beaver Road between I-
75 and Rochester Road and from I-75 to the northern DDA boundary deemed necessary 
by the DDA for the future economic vitality of the District, and with respect thereto, set 
forth the plans for development and financing of said projects as required under Act 197. 

 
Development Plan #3 was structured to provide the DDA with the continued ability to 
utilize tax increment financing to address the needs of the Development Area. 
 
Development Plan #4 was the third amendment to the Development Plan and 
incorporated the project known as “Troy Place Improvement Project.”  This project 
provided the local match required for a local company to receive financial incentives from 
the State of Michigan in order to retain its headquarters in the City of Troy and the State 
of Michigan. 
 
Development Plan #5 was the fourth amendment to the Development Plan and 
incorporated the project known as “Sheffield Plaza Building #2 Improvement Project.”  
This project provided the local match required for a local company to receive financial 
incentives from the State of Michigan in order to retain its headquarters in the State of 
Michigan. 
 
Development Plan #6 was the fifth amendment to the Development Plan and 
incorporated the projects known as the “Big Beaver Corridor Study Implementation Plan,” 
which include a local match for a local company to receive financial incentives from the 
State of Michigan, I-75 interchange improvements, improvements to the Big Beaver 
Corridor, park improvements and property acquisition.  Further, the existing Tax 
Increment Financing Plan adopted and approved at the time of adoption of Development 
Plan #1, Development Plan #2, Development Plan #3, Development Plan #4, and 
Development Plan #5 was retained and modified to include the new development 
consistent with state law. 

 

Attachment A.



 

 4 

E. Reasons for Proposed Plan Amendments 
 

In order to finance part of the cost of the Development Plan, the DDA issued three 
separate bond issues in 2001, 2002 and 2003 (the “DDA Bonds”).  The proceeds of the 
DDA Bonds were used as follows:  in 2001, to finance the cost of roadway and 
streetscape improvements to Big Beaver Road and to refinance a portion of the cost of 
the parking garage adjacent to Somerset North; in 2002, to finance a portion of the cost 
of constructing the Troy Community Center; and in 2003, to finance a portion of the cost 
of constructing the Troy Community Center.  Each of the DDA Bond issues was secured 
solely from the tax increment revenues to be derived from the properties in the 
Development Area.  There was no pledge of the full faith and credit of the City of Troy as 
additional security for the bonds.  The bonds were able to be issued by the DDA without 
a pledge of the full faith and credit of the City because of the then perceived strength of 
the taxable values of the Development Area and the projected ability of the properties in 
the Development Area to generate sufficient tax increment revenues pay the debt service 
on the DDA Bonds. 
 
Due to an unanticipated and dramatic decline in the taxable values in portions of the 
Development Area, the amount of tax increment revenues captured in the Plan has 
declined significantly.  As a result, the DDA will need to use bond reserves and an 
advance from the City to avoid a default on the DDA Bonds during the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2013.  Furthermore, it is projected that there will be no capture of tax 
increment revenues during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014, thus creating the 
likelihood that the DDA will default on the DDA Bonds. 
 
The proposed amendments to the Plan will enable the DDA to avoid a default on the 
DDA Bonds and will provide for (i) the issuance of general obligation bonds by the City 
(the “City Bonds”) to finance a portion of the cost of the Plan and in connection therewith 
refunding the outstanding DDA Bonds, (ii) extending the existence of the Plan to 
December, 2033, and (iii) revising the Development Area for the Plan by removing 
therefrom certain specified properties, with the result that the DDA will be projected to be 
able to  capture sufficient tax increments to pay the principal of and interest on the City 
Bonds.  The tax increment revenues received by the DDA pursuant to the proposed 
amended Plan will be the first source of payment of the City Bonds and the limited tax full 
faith and credit pledge of the City will be the secondary security for the City Bonds. 

 
 

Attachment A.



 

 5 

 2013 PLAN AMENDMENTS 
 
I.  AMENDMENTS TO THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 
The following sections of the Development Plan are amended to read as follows: 
 
1. DESIGNATION OF BOUNDARIES OF THE DEVELOPMENT AREA 

The Development Area is located within the jurisdictional limits of the City of Troy and the 
Downtown District but will no longer be coterminous with the Downtown District in that 
some properties will be removed from the Development Area.  The legal description of 
the Development Area is amended as provided in Section 4. The revised Development 
Area is shown on Exhibit #1.   
 

 
4. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT AREA 
 

Development Area   
 
Property lying on either side of Big Beaver Road between Golfview on the west and Fire 
Station #1 on the east and south to I-75 and Rochester Road and including the following 
Sidwells: 
 
All beginning:  88-20-, then: 
 
19-430-002; 19-453-005; 19-453-008; 19-453-009; 19-453-010; 19-476-001; 20-351-001; 
20-351-004; 20-351-005; 20-351-008; 20-351-009; 20-351-010; 20-376-001; 20-376-004; 
20-376-005; 20-376-006; 20-401-024; 20-402-041; 20-402-052; 20-402-053; 20-402-054; 
20-402-055; 20-476-012; 20-476-030; 20-476-031; 20-476-036; 20-476-039; 20-476-043; 
20-476-047; 20-476-049; 20-476-054; 20-476-055; 21-304-024; 21-326-007; 21-326-008; 
20-326-009; 21-351-012; 21-351-013; 21-401-001; 21-401-002; 21-476-015; 21-476-018; 
21-476-019; 22-355-025; 22-356-031; 22-357-031; 22-358-019; 22-358-028; 22-379-021; 
22-379-023; 22-380-033; 22-380-038; 22-383-001; 22-383-002; 22-383-003; 22-383-006; 
22-477-040; 22-477-048; 22-477-052; 22-477-053; 22-477-054; 22-477-059; 22-477-060; 
22-477-062; 22-478-007; 23-354-047; 26-101-001; 26-101-006; 26-101-009; 26-102-001; 
26-102-001; 26-102-002; 26-102-003; 26-102-004; 26-102-005; 26-102-006; 26-102-013; 
27-101-020; 27-101-055; 27-101-058; 27-101-060; 27-101-061; 27-101-065; 27-102-026; 
27-102-027; 27-201-008; 27-201-009; 27-201-010; 27-201-013; 27-201-014; 27-201-049; 
27-201-050; 27-201-053; 27-201-055; 27-201-058; 27-201-058; 27-201-059; 27-201-060; 
27-226-026; 27-226-027; 27-227-009; 27-227-010; 27-227-011; 27-228-009; 27-228-010; 
27-228-011; 27-228 017; 27-228-018; 27-277-017; 28-101-032; 28 101-034; 28-101-039; 
28-101-047; 28-101-050; 28-101-051; 28-101-052; 28-101-053, 28-101-054, 28-101-063; 
28-101-064; 28-201-006; 28-201-007; 28-201-008; 28-201-009; 28-203-030; 28-203-034;  
28-203-035; 28-203-037; 28-203-038; 28-204-001; 28-204-002; 28-204-003; 28-204-004; 
28-204-007; 28-204-008; 28-226-033; 28-226-034; 28-226-035; 28-226-036; 28-227-006; 
28-227-007; 28-251-007; 28-251-008; 28-251-009; 28-251-010; 28-251-011; 28-251-012; 
28-251-013; 28-251-030; 28-251-037; 28-251-038; 28-251-039; 28-252-016; 28-252-017; 
28-252-018; 28-276-044; 28-276-048; 28-276-049; 28-276-050; 28-277-008; 28-430-017; 
29-101-004; 29-101-006; 29-101-009; 29-101-010; 29-101-011; 29-127-023; 29-127-025; 
29-201-001; 29-201-022; 29-201-023; 29-201-024; 29-201-025; 29-226-002; 29-226-005; 
29-226-016; 29-226-043; 29-226-046; 29-226-047; 29-226-048; 29-226-049; 29-226-050; 
29-226-051; 29-226-052; 29-226-053; 29-226-054; 29-226-055; 29-226-056; 29-226-057; 
29-226-058; 29-226-059; 29-226-060; 29-226-061; 29-226-062; 29-226-063; 29-226-064; 
29-226-065; 29-226-066; 29-226-067; 29-226-068; 29-226-069; 29-226-070; 29-226-072; 
29-226-073; 29-226-074; 29-226-075; 29-277-026; 30-202-004; 30-202-005; 30-226-001; 
30-226-008; 30-226-009; 30-226-010; 30-228-001; and 30-228-002. 

Attachment A.



 

 6 

 
 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION  
 
(North of Big Beaver from West to East) 
Part of the SE ¼ of Section 19, South ½ of Section 20, South ½ of Section 21, South ½ 
of Section 22, SW ¼ of Section 23, NW ¼ of Section 26, North ½ of Section 27, North ½ 
of Section 28, SE ¼ of Section 28, North ½ of Section 29, and NE ¼ of Section 30, Town 
2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan.  Commencing at the 
South ¼ Corner of said section 19; thence North 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds 
East, along the south line of said section 19, also being the centerline of Big Beaver 
Road, 360.04 feet to the Point of Beginning of the Downtown Development Authority 
Area also being South 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West 2298.59 feet from the 
southeast corner of said section 19; thence North 00 degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds 
East 102.01 feet to the north line of Big Beaver Road; thence continuing North 00 
degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds East 1528.00 feet; thence North 65 degrees 09 minutes 
05 seconds East 366.53 feet; thence North 89 degrees 49 minutes 05 seconds East 
1495.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds East 88.57 feet; thence 
North 89 degrees 58 minutes 30 seconds East 400.00 feet to the west line of Coolidge 
Road; thence North 89 degrees 58 minutes 30 seconds East 60.00 feet to the east line of 
said section 19, also being North 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds West 1680.32 feet 
from the southeast corner of said section 19; thence continuing North 89 degrees 58 
minutes 30 seconds East 90.00 feet to the east line of Coolidge Road; thence South 00 
degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds East, along said line, 409.46 feet to the north line of 
Cunningham Road; thence South 45 degrees 18 minutes 22 seconds East, along said 
north line, 42.22 feet; thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East, along said 
line, 124.67 feet; thence along a curve to the left having a radius of 350.00 feet, a delta 
angle of 37 degrees 02 minutes 15 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 
70 degrees 53 minutes 36 seconds East 222.33 feet; thence North 52 degrees 22 
minutes 28 seconds East, along said line, 176.28 feet; thence along a curve to the right, 
along said line, having a radius of 1000.00 feet, a delta angle of 44 degrees 00 minutes 
08 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 74 degrees 22 minutes 32 
seconds East 749.25 feet; thence along a curve to the right, along said line, having a 
radius of 285.00 feet, a delta angle of 83 degrees 41 minutes 37 seconds, and a chord 
bearing and distance of South 41 degrees 46 minutes 38 seconds East 380.27 feet; 
thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East 87.59 feet to the southwest corner 
of “Somerset North Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 213, Pages 35-38,  Oakland 
County, Michigan records; thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East, along 
said south line, 603.02 feet; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds East, along 
said south line, 37.78 feet; thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East, along 
said line, 387.42 feet to the southeast corner of said plat and the west line of “Muer’s 
Garden Farms”, as recorded in Liber 15, Page 45, Oakland County, Michigan records, 
also being the north and south ¼ line of said section 20; thence South 00 degrees 19 
minutes 48 seconds East, along said line, 857.17 feet to the northwest corner of Lot 3 of 
said plat, also being North 00 degrees 19 minutes 48 seconds West 430.00 feet from the 
south ¼ corner of said section 20, and a change in the bearing base to match said plat; 
thence East, along the north line of Lots 3, 93, 125, and 85 of said plat, 1328.64 feet to 
the east line of said plat; thence North 01 degrees 02 minutes East, along said east line, 
886.10 feet to an angle point in said east line, thence South 89 degrees 03 minutes 00 
seconds East, along said east line, 1257.16 feet to the west line of Crooks Road; thence 
South 89 degrees 03 minutes 00 seconds East 60.00 feet to the east line of said Section 
20, being North 02 degrees 00 minutes 29 seconds West 1294.12 feet from the 
southeast corner of said section 20, and a change in the bearing base to match the plat 
of “Wilshire Estates” as recorded in Liber 190, Pages 26-28, Oakland County, Michigan 
records; thence North 02 degrees 00 minutes 29 seconds West, along said east line, 
50.18 feet; thence North 87 degrees 59 minutes 31 seconds East, 60.00 feet to the 

Attachment A.



 

 7 

southwest corner of said “Wilshire Estates” and the east line of Crooks Road; thence 
continuing North 87 degrees 59 minutes 31 seconds East, along the south line of said 
plat, 30.36 feet to an angle point in said plat; thence North 64 degrees 50 minutes 49 
seconds East, along said south line, 371.71 feet to an angle point in said plat; thence 
North 87 degrees 28 minutes 55 seconds East, along said south line, 886.52 feet to the 
southeast corner of said plat; thence North 02 degrees 01 minutes 28 seconds West, 
along the east line of said plat and the east line of “Troyknoll Subdivision No. 1”, as 
recorded in Liber 104, Page 32, Oakland County, Michigan records, 1099.12 feet to the 
south line of “Washington Square Estates”, as recorded in Liber 124, Page 33, Oakland 
County, Michigan records, also being the east and west ¼ line of said section 20; thence 
North 87 degrees 40 minutes 05 seconds East (R=South 89 degrees 11 minutes 30 
seconds East), along said line, 838.45 feet to the west line of Interstate 75; thence North 
87 degrees 42 minutes 26 seconds East, along said line, 488.93 feet to the east line of 
Interstate 75 and the Center Post of said Section 21 and a change in the bearing base to 
match an ALTA Boundary Survey of Troy Civic Center being North 01 degrees 33 
minutes 19 seconds East 2581.69 feet from the South ¼ Corner of said Section 21; 
thence South 89 degrees 13 minutes 52 seconds East, along said east and west ¼ line, 
1312.01 feet to the west line of “Westwood Park Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 249, 
Pages 11-15, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence South 01 degrees 01 minutes 
02 seconds West, along said west line, 220.54 feet to the southwest corner of said plat; 
thence South 01 degrees 17 minutes 00 seconds West, along the west line of 
“Supervisor’s Plat No. 26”, as recorded in Liber 57, Page 59, Oakland County, Michigan 
records, 384.22 feet to the north line of Town Center Drive; thence South 88 degrees 53 
minutes 06 seconds East, along said north line, 796.70 feet; thence South 01 degrees 16 
minutes 54 seconds West, along the west line of Lot 17 of said plat, 399.40 feet to the 
southwest corner of said lot 17; thence South 88 degrees 53 minutes 06 seconds East, 
along the south line of said plat, 468.93 feet to the west line of Livernois Road; thence 
South 88 degrees 53 minutes 06 seconds East 60.00 feet to the east line of said Section 
21, being North 01 degrees 20 minutes 46 seconds East 1648.14 feet from the southeast 
corner of said section 21; thence South 88 degrees 53 minutes 06 seconds East 53.00 
feet to the east line of Livernois Road; thence South 01 degrees 20 minutes 46 seconds 
West, along said east line, 96.05 to the north line of “Eysters Beaver Gardens”, as 
recorded in Liber 26, Page 14, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 88 
degrees 37 minutes 14 seconds West (R=North 89 degrees 20 minutes West), along said 
north line, 20.00 feet to the east line of Livernois Road; thence South 01 degrees 20 
minutes 46 seconds West (R=South 01 degrees 52 minutes West), along said east line, 
664.50 feet to the southwest corner of lot 152 of said plat, also being the north line of 
Hartland Ave. and a change in the bearing base to match said plat; thence South 88 
degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along said north line, 265.00 feet to the southeast 
corner of lot 133 of said plat and the west line of Louis Ave.; thence South 01 degrees 52 
minutes 00 seconds West, along said west line, 728.00 feet to the northeast corner of lot 
13 of said plat; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the north 
line of lots 14 through 37 of said plat, 588.00 feet to the northeast corner of lot 37 and the 
west line of Frankton Ave.; thence North 01 degrees 52 minutes 00 seconds East, along 
said west line, 18.00 feet to the southeast corner of lot 91 of said plat; thence South 88 
degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the south line of lot 68 of said plat, 172.00 
feet to the southeast corner of said lot 68; thence North 01 degrees 52 minutes 00 
seconds East, along the east line of said lot, 110.00 feet to the northeast corner of said 
lot; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the north line of lots 67 
and 44 of said plat, 302.00 feet to the northeast corner of said lot 44 and the west line of 
“Big Beaver”, as recorded in Liber 21, Page 19, Oakland County, Michigan records; 
thence North 00 degrees 51 minutes 00 seconds East, along the said west line 25.00 feet 
to the southwest corner of lot 17 of said plat; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 
seconds East, along the south line of lot 17, 278.30 feet to the southeast corner of said 
lot and the west line of Talbot Ave.; thence North 01 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds 
East, along the said west line, 75.00 feet to the northeast corner of said lot 17; thence 

Attachment A.



 

 8 

South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the north line of lot 60 of said plat, 
323.00 feet to the northeast corner of said lot 60; thence South 01 degrees 31 minutes 36 
seconds West, along the east line of lots 60 and 59, 150.00 feet to the southwest corner 
of lot 58 of said plat; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the 
south line of said lot, 163.80 feet to the northwest corner of lot 14 of said plat; thence 
South 01 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds West, along the west line of said lot 14, 13.00 
feet; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, 109.20 feet to the west line 
of Kilmer Ave.; thence North 01 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds East, along the said 
west line, 113.00 feet; thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East 50.00 feet 
to the east line of Kilmer Ave. and the southwest corner of Lot 19 of “Burgess Bungalow 
Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 46, Page 34, Oakland County, Michigan records; 
thence South 88 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East, along the south line of Lots 19-22 
of said plat 273.00 feet to the east line of said plat and the west line of “Supervisors Plat 
No. 9”, as recorded in Liber 46, Page 41, Oakland County, Michigan records being North 
88 degrees 40 minutes West 165.00 feet and North 01 degrees 30 minutes East 336.00 
feet from the south ¼ corner of said section 22; thence North 01 degrees 30 minutes 00 
seconds East, along said line, 240.77 feet; thence South 89 degrees 00 minutes 00 
seconds East 165.89 feet to the northwest corner of lot 5 of said plat; thence South 89 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East, along the north line of said plat, 2009.59 feet to an 
angle point along the north line of said plat; thence South 87 degrees 41 minutes 00 
seconds East, along said north line, 251.65 feet to the southwest corner of lot 25 of said 
plat and a change in the bearing base to match Rochester Road ROW acquisition 
documents; thence North 89 degrees 18 minutes 15 seconds East, along the south line 
of said lot 25, 146.56 feet to the west line of Rochester Road; thence North 89 degrees 
18 minutes 15 seconds East 171.16 feet to the east line of Rochester Road; thence 
South 17 degrees 01 minutes 45 seconds West, along the said east line, 129.38 feet; 
thence on a curve to the left having a radius of 1925.12 feet, a delta angle of 00 degrees 
25 minutes 04 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of South 16 degrees 49 
minutes 13 seconds West 14.03 feet; thence South 38 degrees 51 minutes 10 seconds 
East, along said east line, 28.72 feet to the north line of Urbancrest Ave. of “Supervisor’s 
Plat No. 13” as recorded in Liber 49, Page 1, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence 
North 86 degrees 38 minutes 09 seconds East, along said north line, 492.62 feet to the 
southeast corner of lot 9 of said plat and a change in the bearing base to match said plat; 
thence South 03 degrees 30 minutes West, along the east line of lot 7 of said plat, 209.00 
feet to the southeast corner of lot 7 of said plat and the north line of “Supervisors Plat No. 
11”, as recorded in Liber 46, Page 46, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 
88 degrees 05 minutes West, along said north line, 7.83 feet to the northeast corner of lot 
17 of said plat; thence South 01 degrees 15 minutes 18 seconds West, along the east 
line of said lot 17, 106.49 feet to the north line of Big Beaver Road; thence South 01 
degrees 15 minutes 18 seconds West 102.00 feet to the south line of said section 23, 
also being the centerline of Big Beaver Road and South 88 degrees 45 minutes East 
376.02 feet from the southwest corner of said section 23; 
 
(South of Big Beaver from East to West) 
 
thence North 88 degrees 45 minutes 00 seconds West, along the said south line, 99.62 
feet; thence South 01 degrees 28 minutes West, along the west line of Lot 25 of 
“Supervisors Plat No. 11”, as recorded in Liber 46, Page 46, of Oakland County, 
Michigan records, 818.08 feet to the north line of Interstate 75 Right of Way and a 
change in bearing base to match “Ladendorf-Tobias Subdivision” as recorded in Liber 37, 
Page 23, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 53 degrees 08 minutes 01 
seconds West 92.65 feet; thence North 89 degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds West 457.45 
feet; thence North 13 degrees 06 minutes 00 seconds East 3.95 feet; thence North 89 
degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds West 119.77 feet to the east line of Rochester Road, as 
per said plat; thence South 13 degrees 06 minutes 00 seconds West 308.60 feet to a 
change in the bearing base to match “Ford Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 58, Page 

Attachment A.



 

 9 

24, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 88 degrees 58 minutes 40 seconds 
West 266.88 feet; thence North 13 degrees 34 minutes 50 seconds East 140.00 feet to 
the southeast corner of Lot 8 of said plat; thence North 88 degrees 58 minutes 40 
seconds West, along the south line of said lot, 41.80 feet; thence North 01 degrees 23 
minutes 10 seconds East, along the west line of said lot, 283.07 feet; thence North 02 
degrees 34 minutes 37 seconds East 60.02 feet to the southeast corner of Lot 26 of said 
plat; thence North 12 degrees 54 minutes 50 seconds East 260.00 feet; thence North 07 
degrees 06 minutes 40 seconds East 110.95 feet to the northeast corner of said “Ford 
Subdivision”; thence North 88 degrees 15 minutes 20 seconds West 195.85 feet to an 
angle point in said plat; thence North 89 degrees West 475.88 feet to plat angle point; 
thence South 01 degrees 30 minutes 50 seconds West 27.00 feet to the southeast corner 
of Lot 51 of said plat; thence North 89 degrees 01 minutes 20 seconds West, along the 
south line of Lots 51-41 of said plat, 682.88 feet to the southwest corner of Lot 41; thence 
North 01 degrees 23 minutes 10 seconds East, along the west line of Lot 41, 136.73 feet 
to the south line of Big Beaver Road and a change in the bearing base to match parcel 
#88-20-27-201-001 tax description; thence South 89 degrees 44 minutes 48 seconds 
West, along said south line, 639.76 feet; thence North 89 degrees 55 minutes 50 
seconds West, along said south line, 404.54 feet being North 89 degrees 55 minutes 50 
seconds West 402.68 feet and South 00 degrees 57 minutes 14 seconds West 102.00 
feet from the North ¼ Corner of Section 27; thence South 00 degrees 57 minutes 14 
seconds West 298.00 feet; thence North 89 degrees 55 minutes 50 seconds West 95.00 
feet to the east line of “Frosty Sunny Acres”, as recorded in Liber 64, Page 9, Oakland 
County, Michigan records; thence South 00 degrees 57 minutes 14 seconds West, along 
said east line, 270.38 feet to the northeast corner of “Beaver Heights”, as recorded in 
Liber 23, Page 11, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence South 00 degrees 42 
minutes 09 seconds West, along the east line of said plat, 424.15 feet to the north line of 
Interstate 75 Right of Way and a change in bearing base to match the said plat of 
“Beaver Heights”; thence South 89 degrees 12 minutes 00 seconds West 2152.54 feet to 
the east line of Livernois Road, being South 01 degrees East 1081.90 feet and North 89 
degrees 12 minutes East 60.00 feet from the Northwest Corner of Section 27; thence 
South 01 degrees East, along said east line, 1601+/- feet to the intersection of the said 
east line and the north line of “Summit Park Subdivision”, as recorded in Liber 17, Page 
35, Oakland County, Michigan records, extended easterly and a change in bearing base 
to match said “Summit Park Subdivision”; thence South 01 degrees 47 minutes 00 
seconds West 200.54 feet to the intersection of said east line and the south line of 
Olympia Blvd. extended easterly; thence North 88 degrees 32 minutes 00 seconds West, 
along the said south line, 469.00 feet; thence North 01 degrees 47 minutes 00 seconds 
East, along the west line of lot 196 of said plat, 198.83 feet to the north line of said plat; 
thence North 88 degrees 44 minutes 30 seconds West, along said north line and south 
line of “Royal Ridge Little Farms”, as recorded in Liber 21, Page 17, Oakland County, 
Michigan records, 1158.35 feet, being 8.12 feet west of the southeast corner of Lot 4 of 
said plat, and a change in the bearing base to match said “Royal Ridge Little Farms”; 
thence Due North, parallel to the east line of said Lot 4, 510.00 feet to the north line of 
Lot 4 and the south line of Kirts Blvd.; thence South 89 degrees 35 minutes 30 seconds 
West, along the said south line, 515.17 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 2 of said plat; 
thence South 00 degrees 47 minutes 00 seconds East, along the east line of said Lot 2, 
0.23 feet; thence, along said south line of Kirts Blvd., on a curve to right having a radius 
of 1260.00 feet, a central angle of 00 degrees 02 minutes 42 seconds, and a chord 
bearing and distance of North 76 degrees 53 minutes 40 seconds West 0.99 feet; thence, 
continuing along said south line, on a curve to the right having a radius 1260.00 feet, a 
central angle of 02 degrees 23 minutes 35 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of 
North 75 degrees 40 minutes 32 seconds West 52.62 feet; thence North 74 degrees 28 
minutes 45 seconds West, along said south line, 400.00 feet; thence, along south line, on 
a curve to the left having a radius of 1140.00 feet, a central angle of 03 degrees 58 
minutes 53 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 76 degrees 28 minutes 
11 seconds West 79.20 feet; thence, along said line, on a curve to the left having a radius 

Attachment A.



 

 10 

of 1140.00 feet, a central angle of 01 degrees 16 minutes 59 seconds, and a chord 
bearing and distance of North 79 degrees 06 minutes 08 seconds West 25.53 feet to the 
east line “F.J. Kirts Farm”, as recorded in Liber 31, Page 1, Oakland County, Michigan 
records and a change in bearing base to match said plat; thence North 00 degrees 46 
minutes West, along said east line and south line of Kirts Blvd., +/-6.73 feet to the 
northeast corner of Lot 23 of said plat; thence South 89 degrees 33 minutes 00 seconds 
West, along the south line of Kirts Blvd., 1302.00 feet to the northwest corner of Lot 14; 
thence North 00 degrees 23 minutes 39 seconds West 120.00 feet to the southeast 
corner of Unit 1 of “Troy Center Professional Building Condominium”, as recorded in 
Condominium Plan #1437, Oakland County, Michigan records, being the west line of 
Troy Center Drive, and a change in bearing base to match said condo; thence North 00 
degrees 04 minutes 37 seconds West, along said west line, 572.01 feet to the northeast 
corner of said Unit 1 and a change in bearing base to match #88-20-28-101-048 tax 
description; thence South 87 degrees 23 minutes 39 seconds West, along west line, 7.08 
feet; thence, along west line, on a curve to the left having a radius of 1140.00 feet, a 
central angle of 07 degrees 31 minutes 05 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of 
North 15 degrees 40 minutes 45 seconds West 149.48 feet; thence North 19 degrees 26 
minutes 18 seconds West, along said west line, 397.91 feet; thence, along said west line 
of Town Center Drive, on a curve to the right having a radius of 1260.00 feet, a central 
angle of 08 degrees 21 minutes 58 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 
15 degrees 15 minutes 18 seconds West 183.82 feet; thence South 87 degrees 28 
minutes 55 seconds West 564.02 feet; thence South 02 degrees 31 minutes 05 seconds 
East 306.70 feet; thence South 87 degrees 23 minutes 39 seconds West 589.37 feet to 
the west line of Section 28, being South 02 degrees 25 minutes 41 seconds East 934.61 
feet from the Northwest Corner of Section 28, thence South 87 degrees 23 minutes 39 
seconds West 33.00 feet to the east line of “Supervisor’s Plat of Butterfield Farm”, as 
recorded in Liber 48, Page 44, Oakland County, Michigan records and the west line of 
Crooks Road; thence North 02 degrees 25 minutes 41 seconds West, along said line, 
490.49 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 18 of said plat and a change in bearing base to 
match said plat; thence South 88 degrees 10 minutes West, along the north line of Lots 
18-33, inclusive, of said plat, 1725.40 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 34 of said plat; 
thence South 01 degrees 27 minutes East, along the east line of said lot, 31.00 feet; 
thence South 88 degrees 10 minutes West 106.00 feet to the west line of said Lot 34 and 
the east line of Todd Road; thence South 01 degrees 27 minutes East, along the said 
east line and the east line of Lot 6 of “Supervisor’s Plat of Walker Farms”, as recorded in 
Liber 65, Page 36, Oakland County, Michigan records, 854.86 feet to the southeast 
corner of said Lot 6; thence South 88 degrees 51 minutes 20 seconds West, along the 
south line of said plat, 790.70 feet to the southwest corner of said plat; thence North 01 
degrees 15 minutes West, along the west line of said plat, 122.82 feet to the southeast 
corner of “Supervisor’s Plat No. 15”, as recorded in Liber 34, Page 44, Oakland County, 
Michigan records and a change in bearing base to match said plat; thence North 88 
degrees 35 minutes 10 seconds West 33.01 feet to the southeast corner of Lot 14 of said 
plat; thence North 00 degrees 02 minutes 20 seconds East, along the east line of Lots 
14-17, inclusive, of said plat, 536.50 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 17; thence South 
89 degrees 20 minutes 20 seconds West, along the north line of Lot 17, 593.35 feet to 
the northwest corner of Lot 17; thence Due South, along the west line of Lots 17 and 16, 
276.44 feet to the north line of Lot 14 of “Troy Apartment Sub. No. 4”, as recorded in 
Liber 121, Pages 10-14, Oakland County, Michigan records, being the south line of 
Golfview Drive, and a change in bearing base to match said plat; thence, along said 
south line, on a curve to the left having a radius of 320.00 feet, a central angle of 11 
degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of South 84 degrees 
04 minutes 35 seconds West 66.34 feet to the northwest corner of said Lot 14; thence 
South 78 degrees 07 minutes 37 seconds West, along the south line of Golfview Drive 
and north line of Outlet A and Lot 10 of said plat, 1065.28 feet; thence North 89 degrees 
22 minutes 00 seconds West, along said south line, 860.28 feet to the northwest corner 
of Lot 9 of said plat and the east line of Coolidge Road; thence South 01 degrees 12 

Attachment A.



 

 11 

minutes 00 seconds West, along the said east line, 75.58 feet to a change in the bearing 
base to match “Buckingham Woods Subdivision No. 2”, as recorded in Liber 140, Pages 
39-41, Oakland County, Michigan records; thence North 88 degrees 54 minutes 05 
seconds West 60.00 feet to the east line of Section 30, being South 01 degrees 12 
minutes 28 seconds West 1273.45 feet from the Northeast Corner of Section 30; thence 
North 88 degrees 54 minutes 05 seconds West 886.80 feet to the south line of Golfview 
Drive and the southeast corner of Lot 196 of said “Buckingham Woods Subdivision No. 
2”; thence North 43 degrees 54 minutes 05 seconds West, along the said south line, 
238.90 feet; thence North 58 degrees 57 minutes 30 seconds West, along said line, 
43.62 feet; thence, along said line, on a curve to the left having a radius of 257.00 feet, a 
central angle of 29 degrees 56 minutes 35 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of 
North 73 degrees 55 minutes 47 seconds West 132.79 feet; thence North 88 degrees 54 
minutes 05 seconds West, along said line, 395.71 feet; thence, continuing along said line, 
on a curve to the right having a radius of 428.00 feet, a central angle of 89 degrees 38 
minutes 02 seconds, and a chord bearing and distance of North 44 degrees 05 minutes 
04 seconds West 603.35 feet; thence North 00 degrees 43 minutes 57 seconds East, 
along the west line of said Golfview Drive, 508.09 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 147 
of said plat and the south line of Big Beaver Road; thence North 89 degrees 16 minutes 
03 seconds West, along said south line, 246.99 feet; thence North 00 degrees 43 
minutes 57 seconds East 102.00 feet to the north line of Section 30 and the Point of 
Beginning.    
 

The following properties are specifically excluded from the Development Area: 
 

88-20-27-101-060   100 E Big Beaver 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 27, Frost Sunny Acres Lot 1; also Lot 3, except 
the South 250.00 Feet; also Lots 4 TO 9 Inclusive, except North 42.00 Feet of said Lots 
taken for Big Beaver Road 
 
88-20-21-476-018   200 W Big Beaver 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 21, Part of the Southeast 1/4, Beginning at a Point 
Distant North 00 degrees 09 minutes 47 degrees East 102.00 Feet & West 852.50 Feet 
from Southeast Section Corner; thence West 470.90 Feet; thence North 00 degrees 08 
minutes 17 seconds East 553.96 Feet; thence North 89-43-42 East 325.69 Feet; thence 
North 89 degrees 51 minutes 24 seconds East 145.22 Feet; thence South 00 degrees 08 
minutes 17 seconds West 555.87 Feet to Beginning.  6.77 Acres    
 
88-20-20-376-001   2600 W Big Beaver 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 20, Part of the Southwest 1/4, Beginning at a 
Point Distant North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East 1,567.38 Feet & North 00 
degrees 04 minutes 08 seconds East 132.01 Feet from Southwest Section Corner; 
thence North 00 degrees 04 minutes 08 seconds East 1,193.02 Feet; thence North  89 
degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East 690.61 Feet; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 
30 seconds East 37.78 Feet; thence North 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds East 
387.42 Feet; thence South 00 degrees 19 minutes 48 seconds East 929.97 Feet; thence 
South 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds West 392.37 Feet; thence North 00 degrees 01 
minutes 30 seconds West 17.79 Feet; thence South 89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds 
West 184.46 Feet; thence South 00 degrees 19 minutes 48 seconds East 273 Feet; 
thence South  89 degrees 24 minutes 45 seconds West 479.61 Feet; thence North 45 
degrees 15 minutes 25 minutes West 42.18 Feet to Beginning.  26.58 Acres 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A.



 

 12 

88-20-29-127-023   2601 W Big Beaver 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 29, Supervisor’s Plat Number 15, South 300.00 
Feet of Lot 5;  also all of Lots 6 & 7; also those Parts of Lots 8, 10, 11 & 12 lying East of 
Lakeview Drive and North of Golfview Drive; also West 1/2 of Vacated Delmere Avenue 
adjacent to said Parts of Lots 10 & 11, except Beginning at a Point Distant North 89 
degrees 22 minutes 00 seconds West 60.00 Feet from North ¼ Corner, thence South 01 
degrees 19 minutes 43 seconds West 102.00 Feet; thence North 89 degrees 22 minutes 
00 seconds West 1,026.96 Feet; thence North 01 degrees 17 minutes 23 seconds East 
102.00 Feet; thence South 89 degrees 22 minutes 00 seconds East 1,027.03 Feet to 
Beginning; also except that part in Parcel described as Beginning at a Point Distant 
South 01 degrees 12 minutes 00 seconds West 102.00 Feet & South 89 degrees 22 
minutes 00 seconds East 1,567.05 Feet from Northwest Section Corner; thence South 89 
degrees 22 minutes 00 seconds East 30.00 Feet; thence South 45 degrees 57 minutes 
42 seconds West 42.67 Feet; thence North 01 degrees 17 minutes 23 seconds East 
30.00 Feet to Beginning. 
 
 
88-20-19-476-001  Vacant Land (Kmart S Site) 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 19, Part of the Southeast ¼, Beginning at a Point 
Distant North 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds West 120.00 Feet & South 89 degrees 
30 minutes 00 seconds West 60.00 Feet from Southeast Section Corner; thence S 44 
degrees 48 minutes 54 seconds West 42.60 Feet; thence S 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 
seconds West 903.00 Feet; thence N 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds West 12.00 
Feet; thence S 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West 227.00 Feet; thence N 45 
degrees 15 minutes 40 seconds West 42.22 Feet, thence N 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 
seconds West 824.57 Feet; thence Along a Curve Concave to Southeast, Radius 185.00 
Feet, Chord bears North 44 degrees 44 minutes 15 seconds East 260.54 Feet, distance 
of 289.06 Feet; thence N 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds East 1,006.53 Feet; thence 
S 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds East 1,020.04 Feet to Beginning; except Beginning 
at a Point Distant North 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds West 120.00 Feet & South 89 
degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West 60.00 Feet & South 44 degrees 48 minutes 54 
seconds West 25.53 Feet from Southeast Section Corner; thence South 44 degrees 48 
minutes 54 seconds West 17.07 Feet; thence South 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds 
West 903.00 Feet; thence North 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds West 12.00 Feet; 
thence North 89 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds East 915.03 Feet to Beginning.  28.18 
Acres 
 
 
88-20-19-430-004   Vacant Land (Kmart N Site) 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 19, Part of the Southeast 1/4, Beginning at a Point 
Distant North 00 degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds East 102.01 Feet & North 89 degrees 
30 minutes 00 seconds East 360.04 Feet & North 00 degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds 
East 1,008.94 Feet & South 89 degrees 38 minutes 37 seconds East 872.52 Feet & 
North 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds West 680.20 Feet & North 89 degrees 49 
minutes 05 seconds East 327.00 Feet from South ¼ Corner; thence North 89 degrees 49 
minutes 05 seconds East 631.62 Feet; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds 
East 88.57 Feet; thence North 89 degrees 58 minutes 30 seconds East 400.00 Feet, 
thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds East 440.77 Feet; thence South 89 
degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West 1,007.36 Feet; thence Along a Curve Concave 
Southeasterly, Radius 285.00 Feet, Chord bears South 87 degrees 03 minutes 20 
seconds West 24.32 Feet, distance of 24.33 Feet; thence North 00 degrees 01 minutes 
30 seconds West 537.20 Feet, to Beginning.  11.81 Acres 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A.



 

 13 

88-20-19-453-005   3310 W Big Beaver 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 19, Part of the Southeast 1/4, Beginning at a Point 
Distant, North 00 degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds East 102.01 Feet & North 89 degrees 
30 minutes 00 seconds East 360.04 Feet & North 00 degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds 
East 1,039.94 Feet from South 1/4 Corner; thence N 00-21-23 East 488.06 Feet; thence 
North 65 degrees 09 minutes 05 seconds East 366.53 Feet; thence North 89 degrees 49 
minutes 05 seconds East 536.38 Feet; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 30 seconds  
East 524.20 Feet; thence North 89 degrees 38 minutes 37 second West 439.98 Feet; 
thence South 00 degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds West 125.00 Feet; thence North 89 
degrees 38 minutes 37 seconds West 431.50 Feet to Beginning.  11.04 Acres 
 
 
88-20-28-276-048   100 Kirts 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 28, Pinehurst Farms, Lot 7 except West 50.00 
Feet; also of Royal Ridge Little Farms, Lot 12 except South 40.00 Feet; also except 
Beginning at the Northwest Lot Corner, thence North 89 degrees 54 minutes 00 seconds 
East 18.49 Feet; thence South 20-15-51 West 53.29 Feet; thence North 00 degrees 02 
minutes 28 seconds West 50.00 Feet to Beginning; also of Royal Ridge Subdivision, Lots 
31 to 43 inclusive & Lots 54 to 61 Inclusive; also that Part of Lots  27 to 30 inclusive & 
that Part of Lots 44 & 53 [&] of Pinehurst Farms, and that Part of Lot 23 lying Westerly 
and Southerly of the following described as, Beginning at a Point Distant South 89 
degrees 35 minutes 40 seconds West 109.94 Feet & South 103.96 Feet & South 89 
degrees 35 minutes 40 seconds West 191.56 Feet from the Southeast Corner of Lot 6 of 
Royal Ridge Subdivision; thence North 385.06 Feet; thence West 148.00 Feet; thence 
North 329.00 Feet to the Point of Ending, except South 15.00 Feet or Lots 53 to 61 
inclusive, of Royal Ridge Subdivision; also all of Vacated Elver Avenue adjacent to same; 
also South 30.00 Feet of Lowry Street adjacent to Lot  7 of Pinehurst Farms, except West 
50.00 Feet.  
 
 
88-20-28-251-039   500 Kirts 
Town 2 North, Range 11 East; Section 28, Royal Ridge Little Farms, Lot 13 except South 
35.00 Feet, also except Beginning at the Northeast Lot Corner, thence South 00 degrees 
00 minutes 16 seconds West 495.76 Feet; thence South 89 degrees 35 minutes 30 
seconds West 50.00 Feet; thence North 00 degrees 00 minutes 16 seconds East 495.88 
Feet, thence North 89 degrees 43 minutes 40 seconds East 50.00 Feet to Beginning; 
also East 1/2 of Vacated Virgilia Avenue adjacent to same; also Lot 14 except South 
350.00 Feet; also except Beginning at the Northeast Corner of Said Lot 14, thence South 
40.15 Feet; thence South 89 degrees 35 minutes 00 seconds West 108.15 Feet; thence 
North 00 degrees 42 minutes 00 seconds West 40.15 Feet; thence North 89 degrees 36 
minutes 00 seconds East 109.13 Feet to Beginning; also West 1/2 of Vacated Virgilia 
Avenue adjacent to said Lot 14, also Lots 15, 16 & 17 except South 35.00 Feet of all said 
Lots taken for Kirts Road. 
 

A map showing the boundary of the revised Development Area is attached as Exhibit #1.  
 
  

Attachment A.



 

 14 

 
II. AMENDMENTS TO TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN 

 
The following sections of the Tax Increment Financing Plan are amended to read as follows: 
 
6. MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS 
 

The maximum amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred after the 2013 amendments to 
the Tax Increment Financing Plan are adopted is $15,500,000.  The bonds will be limited tax 
general obligation bonds issued by the City (the “City Bonds”) pursuant to Section 16 of Act 
197 (MCL 125.1666) to pay the costs of the Development Plan previously paid from the 
proceeds of outstanding bonds issued by the DDA in 2001, 2002 and 2003 (the “DDA 
Bonds”).  The proceeds of the City Bonds will be used to refund the DDA Bonds.  The tax 
increment revenues received by the DDA pursuant to the amended Plan will be the first 
source of payment of the City Bonds and the limited tax full faith and credit pledge of the City 
will be the secondary security for the City Bonds.  The City Bonds will not be issued unless 
the City determines that the tax increment revenues to be received by the DDA pursuant to 
the amended Plan are projected to be at least sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on 
the City Bonds. 
 

7. USE OF CAPTURED REVENUES 
 

Tax increment revenues captured pursuant to the amended Tax Increment Financing Plan 
will be used to pay the principal of and interest on the City Bonds and to the extent that there 
are surplus tax increment revenues in any fiscal year after payment of the principal of and 
interest on the City Bonds, such surplus may be used only for maintenance of the public 
facilities in the Downtown District and administrative costs of the DDA, consistent with the  
Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan. 

 
8. DURATION OF THE PROGRAM 
 

The duration of the Development Plan and the Tax Increment Financing Plan shall extend 
through the collection of taxes levied through December of 2033. 

 
 

III.  EFFECT OF 2013 AMENDMENTS TO DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND TAX 
INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN 

 
The Development Plan and the Tax Increment Financing Plan, as amended by the foregoing 
2013 amendments to the Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan, respectively, are 
ratified and confirmed.  To the extent of any inconsistencies between the foregoing 2013 
amendments to the Development Plan and the Tax Increment Financing Plan and the 
Development Plan and the Tax Increment Financing Plan as they respectively exist prior to the 
foregoing amendments, the provisions of the foregoing 2013 amendments shall prevail. 
 
 
BLOOMFIELD 90528-10 1296239v2 

Attachment A.



A
L

P
IN

E

M
C

C
L

U
R

E

WILSHIRE

L
A

K
E

V
IE

W

B
U

T
T

E
R

F
IE

L
D

L
A

K
E

V
I E

W
BIG BEAVER

GOLFVIEW

C
O

O
L

ID
G

E

CUNNINGHAM

L
IV

E
R

N
O

IS

W
IL

SH
IR

E

CIV
IC

C
E

N
T

E
R

C
R

O
O

K
S

LINDA

S
P

E
N

C
E

R

LOWRY

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

KIRTS

TO
D

D

H
E

L
E

N
A

TA
L

B
O

T

TOW
N CENTER

BIG BEAVER

2901

2801

2850

2800

3310

2705

2855

3270 2850

3250

2750

3215

3221

3290

3331

3001

3155

2699

2301

767

999

791 700650

295

2765

2075

1500

3041

2089

2250

2150

2155

730

64
5

625

755

699

255
165

575

300

400

19
85

646

560

500

2125

335411 35
3

800

34
7

900

2550

2495

2359

100

500

2825

2221

2032600

50200

350

2600

2950

888

1019

198

3031

2220

201

950
2940

1800

2282

3113

1740

1059301

10
62

10
54

2265

901

525

17
07

2780

363

2919

200

10
42

29952989

1615

2840

2789

40 100

868

1465

3129

10
40

3065

1700

2810

16211985

1050

2959

539

1650

2400
2100

911 8031475

1787

1719

725

355
435

575

2800

2844

2240

3100

667

751

2601

275
335

215

781

85

189

802 840

3150

600

3179

19002000

20
50

Revised Development Area
µ

Legend

Parcel

Development Area

DDA Boundary

Date: 6/7/2013













Attachment B.



Attachment B.



Attachment B.



Attachment B.



 

615 Griswold Street wwww Suite 1225 wwww Detroit, Michigan 48226-3997 
(313) 961-8222 wwww FAX (313) 961-8220 

e-mail wwww rjb@bendzinski.com 

 
 
 
  August 2, 2013 

 
 
Mr. Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI  48084-5285 
 
Re: City of Troy Downtown Development Authority Refinancing 

Dear Brian: 
 
You have raised the question as to what type of impact the filing of bankruptcy 

proceedings by the City of Detroit will have on the City of Troy’s ability to refinance the 
outstanding Downtown Development Authority bonds. 

 
We have had several discussions with various underwriters and bond purchasers 

regarding what type of interest rate penalty or “Detroit Premium” Michigan bonds are 
experiencing.  We have been advised by these underwriters that as of July 31, 2013, they have 
not seen any type of penalty or premium due to the fact that the City of Detroit has filed for 
bankruptcy.   

 
However, it is our professional opinion that as the City of Detroit case moves through the 

court, we cannot predict what type of penalty or premium could be attached to any type of 
Michigan municipal bonds that are sold in the future.  As you are aware, this is a case that has 
national attention and is being watched by almost everyone and especially by municipal bond 
underwriters and purchasers. 

 
As the City and the DDA proceed with the bonding process, we will keep you apprised of 

any changes that may occur in the municipal bond market due to the City of Detroit 
bankruptcy.   

 
We hope this provides you with sufficient information.  However, if you have any 

questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
     Sincerely, 

     BENDZINSKI & CO. 
     Municipal Finance Advisors 

      
     Robert J. Bendzinski, CIPFA 
 

Attachment C.



 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held on August 12, 2013. 

 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

  _________________________________________________________________ 

  _________________________________________________________________ 

  _________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

 

 The following resolution was moved by _________________________ and seconded by 

_________________________: 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 2013  AMENDMENTS TO 

 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN 
AND AMENDMENTS TO ORDINANCE 78 AND ORDINANCE 80 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975, as amended 

(MCL 125.1651 et. seq.) (“Act 197”), and Ordinance 78 adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Troy (the “City”) on July 12, 1993, the City Council created the Downtown Development 

Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 197 and Ordinance 80 adopted by the City Council of the 

City of December 13, 1993, the City Council approved the Development Plan and Tax Increment 

Financing Plan (the “Plan”), which Plan was subsequently amended in 1998, 2000, 2002 (twice) 

and 2007; and  

WHEREAS, there have been prepared and submitted to the City Council further 

amendments to the Plan designated “2013 Amendments to Development Plan and Tax Increment 

Financing Plan” (the “2013 Plan Amendments”) with the recommendation from the DDA that 

the 2013 Plan Amendments be approved by the City Council; and 



2 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on the 2013 Plan Amendments on this date 

by the City Council pursuant to notice given as required by Act 197 and other applicable law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That the City Council hereby approves extending the existence of the DDA to 

December 31, 2033 and amends Ordinance 78 in the form presented to this meeting. 

2. That the City Council hereby approves the 2013 Plan Amendments in the form 

attached hereto and amends Ordinance 80 in the form presented to this meeting. 

 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution be and the same are rescinded. 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 

Yes:  _________________________________________________________________ 

No:  _________________________________________________________________ 

Absent: _________________________________________________________________ 
 



3 
 

 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 
 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly 

adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held on August 12, 2013, the original of which resolution is on file in my office.  I further certify 

that notice of said meeting was given in accordance with the provisions of the Open Meetings 

Act, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended (MCL 15.261 et. seq.). 

 

 
 
       ___________________________________  

 M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
 Troy City Clerk 
  

 
 
BLOOMFIELD 90528-10 1302557v1 



 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held on August 12, 2013. 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

 

 The following resolution was made by _________________________ and seconded by 

_________________________: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED  
$15,500,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX BONDS, SERIES 2013 

 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975, as amended 

(MCL 125.1651 et. seq.) (“Act 197”), and Ordinance 78 adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Troy (the “City”) on July 12, 1993, the City Council created the Downtown Development 

Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 197 and Ordinance 80 adopted by the City Council of the 

City of December 13, 1993, the City Council approved the Development Plan and Tax Increment 

Financing Plan (the “Plan”), which Plan was subsequently amended in 1998, 2000, 2002 (twice) 

and 2007; and 

WHEREAS, the DDA has previously issued the following bonds pursuant to Act 197, 

secured solely by tax increment revenues, as defined in Act 197 (“Tax Increment Revenues”), 

received by the DDA to finance the implementation of a portion of the Plan: (i) Downtown 

Development Authority Development and Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 in the aggregate 

principal amount of $24,000,000 to finance the cost of roadway and streetscape improvements to 



-2- 

Big Beaver Road and to refinance a portion of the cost of the parking garage adjacent to 

Somerset North, (ii) Community Center Facility Bonds, Series 2002 in the aggregate principal 

amount of $9,700,000 to finance a portion of the cost of constructing the Troy Community 

Center, and (iii) Community Facility Center Junior Lien Bonds, Series 2003 in the aggregate 

principal amount of $4,025,000 to finance a portion of the cost of constructing the Troy 

Community Center (such bonds are collectively referred to as the “DDA Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, although the schedules prepared as part of each issue of DDA Bonds 

predicted that there would be sufficient Tax Increment Revenues to cover all of the debt service 

on the DDA Bonds, there has been an unanticipated decline in property values in the Plan’s 

Development Area since 2008, and a corresponding decrease in the available Tax Increment 

Revenues to the extent that they are unable to pay the debt service on the DDA Bonds as of 

November 1, 2013; and  

WHEREAS, in order to prevent a default on the DDA Bonds, the City Council has on 

this date approved (a) an extension of the existence of the DDA to December 31, 2033 and (b) 

amendments to the Plan that (i) extend the Plan to December, 2033 to allow for the capture of 

annual Tax Increment Revenues to ultimately pay off the indebtedness represented by the DDA 

Bonds, (ii) remove certain specified properties that have significantly decreased in value  from 

the Plan’s Development Area to enable the DDA to realize a capture of Tax Increment Revenues 

from the revised Development Area in amounts sufficient to pay the annual debt service on the 

Bonds (as hereinafter defined) and (iii) contemplate that the City will issue general obligation 

bonds to refund the DDA Bonds, which although requiring the City to pledge its limited tax full 

faith and credit, will be secured primarily by the Tax Increment Revenues to be derived from the 

revised Development Area for the extended period of time; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized under Act 197 to issue the Bonds to pay all or part of 

the cost of implementing the Plan and in connection therewith, refunding the DDA Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the DDA, by resolution adopted on July 24, 2013, has approved and 

submitted to the City Council an estimate of the Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue 



-3- 

available under Section 11 of Act 197 to be available for payment of principal and interest on the 

Bonds, as set forth in attached Exhibit A; and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that this resolution be adopted in order 

to effect the refunding of all of the DDA Bonds in order to avoid a default on the DDA Bonds. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 

1. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS – PURPOSE

2. 

.  Bonds of the City aggregating 

the principal sum of not to exceed Fifteen Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($15,500,000) (the “Bonds”), as determined by the City Manager at the time of sale, shall be 

issued and sold pursuant to the provisions of Act 197, and other applicable statutory provisions, 

for the purpose of paying part of the cost of implementing the Plan and in connection therewith, 

refunding all of the outstanding DDA Bonds. 

BOND DETAILS

3. 

.  The Bonds shall be designated “General Obligation Limited 

Tax Bonds, Series 2013;” shall be dated as of the date of delivery thereof to the Underwriter (as 

hereinafter defined); shall be numbered from 1 upwards; shall be fully registered; shall be in the 

denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding the aggregate 

principal amount for each maturity at the option of the purchaser thereof; shall bear interest at a 

rate or rates not exceeding 8.00% per annum as shall be determined by the City Manager at the 

time of sale, payable on each May 1 and November 1 as shall be determined by the City 

Manager at the time of sale; shall be mature on November 1 in such years and in such principal 

amounts as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; and shall be serial bonds 

and/or term bonds as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale. 

PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST.  The principal of and interest on 

the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States.  Principal shall be payable upon 

presentation and surrender of the Bonds to the bond registrar and paying agent as they severally 

mature.  Interest shall be paid to the registered owner of each Bond as shown on the registration 

books at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding the month in 

which the interest payment is due.  Interest shall be paid when due by check or draft drawn upon 



-4- 

and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent to the registered owner at the registered 

address. 

4. PRIOR REDEMPTION

5. 

.  The Bonds shall be subject to mandatory and/or 

optional redemption prior to maturity if so determined by the City Manager at the time of sale 

and if so determined, upon such terms and conditions as shall be approved by the City Manager; 

provided, however, that the redemption premium to be payable in connection with any optional 

redemption of the Bonds shall not exceed 2% of the principal amount of any Bond to be 

redeemed. 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.  Initially, one fully-registered Bond for each maturity, 

in the aggregate amount of such maturity, shall be issued in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee 

of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) for the benefit of other parties (the “Participants”) in 

the book-entry-only transfer system of DTC.  In the event the City determines that it is in the 

best interest of the City not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that the interests of 

the holders of the Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of transfer is 

continued, the City may notify DTC and the bond registrar and paying agent, whereupon DTC 

will notify the Participants of the availability through DTC of Bond certificates.  In such event, 

the bond registrar and paying agent shall deliver, transfer and exchange Bond certificates as 

requested by DTC and any Participant or “beneficial owner” in appropriate amounts in 

accordance with this resolution.  DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with 

respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and the bond registrar and paying 

agent and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law or the City 

may determine that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties and may so advise DTC.  In either 

such event, the City shall use reasonable efforts to locate another securities depository.  Under 

such circumstances (if there is no successor securities depository), the City and the bond registrar 

and paying agent shall be obligated to deliver Bond certificates in accordance with the 

procedures established by this resolution.  In the event Bond certificates are issued, the 

provisions of this resolution shall apply to, among other things, the transfer and exchange of such 



-5- 

certificates and the method of payment of principal of and interest on such certificates.  

Whenever DTC requests the City and the bond registrar and paying agent to do so, the City and 

the bond registrar and paying agent shall cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after 

reasonable notice to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the Bonds to 

any Participant having Bonds credited to its DTC account or to arrange for another securities 

depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Bonds. 

 Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution to the contrary, so long as any 

Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to 

the principal of, interest on and redemption premium, if any, on such Bonds and all notices with 

respect to the Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC.  The City Manager is 

authorized to sign the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations on behalf of the City in such form 

as such official signing the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations deems necessary or 

appropriate in order to accomplish the issuance of the Bonds in accordance with law and this 

resolution. 

6. BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT

7. 

. The City Manager shall designate, 

and may enter into an agreement with, a bond registrar and paying agent for the Bonds which 

shall be a bank or trust company located in the State of Michigan that is qualified to act in such 

capacity under the laws of the United States of America or the State of Michigan.  The City 

Manager from time to time as required may designate a similarly qualified successor bond 

registrar and paying agent. 

EXECUTION, AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF BONDS.  The Bonds 

shall be executed in the name of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor and 

the City Clerk and authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized representative of the 

bond registrar and paying agent, and the seal of the City (or a facsimile thereof) shall be 

impressed or imprinted on the Bonds.  After the Bonds have been executed and authenticated for 

delivery to the original purchaser thereof, they shall be delivered by the City Treasurer or the 

City Manager to the purchaser of the Bonds upon receipt of the purchase price.  Additional 



-6- 

Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk may be 

delivered to the bond registrar and paying agent for authentication and delivery in connection 

with the exchange or transfer of the Bonds.  The bond registrar and paying agent shall indicate 

on each Bond the date of its authentication. 

8. EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF BONDS

 Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the City, which shall be kept for 

that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon surrender of such Bond together with a 

written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent duly executed 

by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 

.  Any Bond, upon surrender thereof 

to the bond registrar and paying agent with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the 

bond registrar and paying agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized 

attorney, at the option of the registered owner thereof, may be exchanged for Bonds of any other 

authorized denominations of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing 

the same rate of interest as the surrendered Bond. 

 Upon the exchange or transfer of any Bond, the bond registrar and paying agent on behalf 

of the City shall cancel the surrendered Bond and shall authenticate and deliver to the transferee 

a new Bond or Bonds of any authorized denomination of the same aggregate principal amount 

and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as the surrendered Bond.  If, at the time 

the bond registrar and paying agent authenticates and delivers a new Bond pursuant to this 

Section, payment of interest on the Bonds is in default, the bond registrar and paying agent shall 

endorse upon the new Bond the following:  “Payment of interest on this bond is in default.  The 

last date to which interest has been paid is ___________, ____.” 

 The City and the bond registrar and paying agent may deem and treat the person in whose 

name any Bond shall be registered upon the books of the City as the absolute owner of such 

Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of the 

principal of and interest on such Bond and for all other purposes, and all payments made to any 

such registered owner, or upon his order, in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this 



-7- 

resolution shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the 

extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the City nor the bond registrar and paying agent 

shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.  The City agrees to indemnify and save the bond 

registrar and paying agent harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense, 

judgment or liability incurred by it, acting in good faith and without negligence hereunder, in so 

treating such registered owner. 

 For every exchange or transfer of Bonds, the City or the bond registrar and paying agent 

may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge 

required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall be paid by 

the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise of the 

privilege of making such exchange or transfer. 

 The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange Bonds 

or portions of Bonds that have been selected for redemption. 

9. FORM OF BONDS.  The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 



-8- 

 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 
CITY OF TROY 

GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX BOND, SERIES 2013 
 
 

 
INTEREST RATE 

 
MATURITY DATE 

 
DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE 

 
CUSIP 

    
 
Registered Owner:  
 
 
Principal Amount:  
 
 
 The City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the “City”), acknowledges 
itself indebted to, and for value received hereby promises to pay to, the Registered Owner 
identified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the Maturity 
Date specified above, unless redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter provided, upon presentation 
and surrender of this bond at the corporate trust office of 
_________________________________, the bond registrar and paying agent, located in 
________, Michigan, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be designated 
pursuant to the Resolution (as hereinafter defined), and to pay to the Registered Owner, as shown 
on the registration books at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month preceding 
the month in which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the 
bond registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the Registered Owner at the 
registered address, interest on such Principal Amount from the Date of Original Issue set forth 
above, or such later date through which interest has been paid, until the City’s obligation with 
respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the rate per annum specified 
above.  Interest is payable on the first days of May and November in each year, commencing on 
__________, 201_. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America. 

 This bond is one of a series of bonds aggregating the principal sum of 
___________________________________ Dollars ($_________) issued by the City under and 
pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and Statutes of Michigan (especially Act 
No. 197, Public Acts of 1975, as amended (“Act 197”)) and a resolution adopted by the City 
Council of the City on August 12, 2013 (the “Resolution”), for the purpose of paying part of the 
cost of implementing the Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan (the “Plan”) of 
the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”) and in connection 
therewith, refunding all of the outstanding bonds of the DDA originally issued to pay such cost.  
The tax increment revenues and other revenue to be received by the DDA pursuant to Section 11 
of Act 197 and the full faith and credit of the City have been pledged to the prompt payment of 
the principal of and interest on this bond.  In the event and to the extent that such tax increment 



-9- 

revenues and other revenue are not sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds of 
this series, such principal and interest are payable as a first budget obligation of the City from its 
general funds. Taxes imposed by the City are subject to constitutional, statutory and charter tax 
limitations. 

 This bond is transferable, as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the City 
kept for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon the surrender of this bond 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent 
duly executed by the Registered Owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon the 
exchange or transfer of this bond a new bond or bonds of any authorized denomination, in the 
same aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity, shall be 
authenticated and delivered to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Resolution, 
and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided.  Bonds so authenticated and delivered 
shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding the aggre-
gate principal amount for each maturity. 

 The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange bonds 
or portions of bonds that have been selected for redemption. 

 
MANDATORY PRIOR REDEMPTION 

 Bonds maturing in the year ____ are subject to mandatory prior redemption at par and 
accrued interest as follows: 

 Principal Amount of 
Redemption Date 

 
Bonds to be Redeemed 

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 Bonds or portions of bonds to be redeemed by mandatory redemption shall be selected by 
lot. 

(REPEAT IF MORE THAN ONE TERM BOND) 
 
 

 
OPTIONAL PRIOR REDEMPTION 

 Bonds maturing prior to __________, ____, are not subject to redemption prior to 
maturity.  Bonds maturing on and after __________, ____, are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity at the option of the City, in such order as shall be determined by the City, on any one or 
more interest payment dates on and after __________, ____.  Bonds of a denomination greater 
than $5,000 may be partially redeemed in the amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  
If less than all of the bonds maturing in any year are to be redeemed, the bonds or portions of 



-10- 

bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot.  The redemption price shall be the par value of the 
bond or portion of the bond called to be redeemed plus interest to the date fixed for redemption 
and a premium as follows: 

 % of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but 
prior to __________, ____; 

 
 % of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but 

prior to __________, ____; 
 
 % of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but 

prior to __________, ____. 
 
 Not less than thirty but not more than sixty days’ notice of redemption shall be given to 
the Registered Owner of bonds called to be redeemed by mail to each Registered Owner at the 
registered address.  Bonds or portions of bonds called for redemption shall not bear interest on 
and after the date fixed for redemption, provided funds are on hand with the bond registrar and 
paying agent to redeem the same. 

 It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to 
exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the bonds of this series, 
existed, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by 
law, and that the total indebtedness of the City, including the series of bonds of which this bond 
is one, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Troy, State of Michigan, by its City Council, has 
caused this bond to be executed in its name by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor 
and the City Clerk and its corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof) to be impressed or imprinted 
thereon.  This bond shall not be valid unless the Certificate of Authentication has been manually 
executed by an authorized representative of the bond registrar and paying agent. 
 

CITY OF TROY 
 
 (SEAL) 
 
 
By:_______________________________  By:_________________________________ 
 City Clerk   Mayor 
 



-11- 

 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 
 
 This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution. 
 
 
 
       
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
 
 
 
By:       
 Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 
AUTHENTICATION DATE:  
 
 



-12- 

 
ASSIGNMENT 

 
 
 For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(please print or type name, address and taxpayer identification number of transferee) the within 
bond and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
attorney to transfer the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of 
substitution in the premises.   
 
 
 
Dated: ____________________  __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Signature Guaranteed:    __________________________________________ 
 
 
 Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a 
Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 
 
 
 



-13- 

10.  APPROVAL OF ESTIMATE OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES

11. 

.  The 

estimate of the Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue available under Section 11 of Act 197 

to be available for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, as approved by the 

DDA and as set forth in attached Exhibit A, is approved. 

SECURITY

12. 

.  The Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue to be available to 

the DDA under Section 11 of Act 197 are pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest 

on the Bonds.  The Bonds shall also be limited tax general obligations of the City.  The full faith 

and credit of the City are also pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on 

the Bonds as the same shall become due.  Each year the City shall be obligated, as a first budget 

obligation, to advance moneys from its general funds or to levy ad valorem property taxes on all 

taxable property within its corporate boundaries to pay such principal and interest as the same 

become due in the event and to the extent that the Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue to 

be available to the DDA under Section 11 of Act 197 are not sufficient to make such payment.    

The ability of the City to raise funds to pay such amounts is subject to applicable constitutional, 

statutory and charter limitations on the taxing power of the City.   

DEFEASANCE

13. 

.  In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or 

obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or a 

combination thereof, the principal of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come due at 

times and in amounts sufficient to pay, at maturity or irrevocable call for earlier optional 

redemption, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, shall have been 

deposited in trust, this resolution shall be defeased and the owners of the Bonds shall have no 

further rights under this resolution except to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if 

any, and interest on the Bonds from the cash or securities deposited in trust and the interest and 

gains thereon and to transfer and exchange Bonds as provided herein. 

PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND.  There is hereby established for the Bonds 

a Principal and Interest Fund that shall be either a separate fund or part of a common fund as 

permitted by law.  From the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, there shall be set aside in the 



-14- 

Principal and Interest Fund any accrued interest received from the purchaser at the time of 

delivery of the same.  The Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue available to the DDA 

under Section 11 of Act 197 and other available moneys of the City, if any, to be used to pay the 

payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be deposited in the Principal and 

Interest Fund and so long as the principal or interest on the Bonds remain unpaid, no moneys 

shall be withdrawn from such fund except to pay such principal and interest or to pay from any 

investment earnings on such fund the fees and expenses of the bond registrar and paying agent. 

14. PAYMENT OF COSTS OF ISSUANCE -- ESCROW FUND.  The remainder of 

the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used, together with available moneys of the DDA, if any, to 

pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds and to refund the DDA Bonds.  After the costs of issuance 

have been paid or provided for the remaining proceeds and DDA moneys, in an amount 

determined by the City Manager at the time of sale of the Bonds, shall be used to establish an 

escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”) consisting of cash and investments in direct obligations of, or 

obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United 

States of America or other obligations the principal of and interest on which are fully secured by 

the foregoing and used to pay the principal of, interest on and redemption premiums, if any, on 

the Prior Bonds.  The Escrow Fund shall be held by an escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) 

pursuant to an Escrow Agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”), which irrevocably shall direct the 

Escrow Agent to take all necessary steps to pay the principal of and interest on the Prior Bonds 

being refunded when due and to call such Prior Bonds for redemption at such time as shall be 

determined in the Escrow Agreement.  The City Manager is authorized to select the Escrow 

Agent and enter into the Escrow Agreement on behalf of the City.  The amounts held in the 

Escrow Fund shall be such that the cash and the investments and the income received on the 

investments will be sufficient without reinvestment to pay the principal of, interest on and 

redemption premiums, if any, on the DDA Bonds when due at maturity or call for redemption as 

required by the Escrow Agreement. 



-15- 

15. APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

16. 

.  The issuance and sale of the 

Bonds shall be subject to permission being granted therefor by the Department of Treasury of the 

State of Michigan as provided in Act 34.  If necessary, the City Manager is authorized to file an 

application with the Department of Treasury for approval of the Bonds. 

SALE, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF BONDS

(a) The interest rate on any Bond shall not exceed 8.00% per annum. 

.  

The Bonds shall be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale as hereinafter provided, and it is hereby 

determined that such negotiated sale is in the best interests of the City and is calculated to 

provide the maximum flexibility in pricing the Bonds and to result in the lowest interest cost to 

the City.  The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Bond Purchase Agreement with Fifth 

Third Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriter”), which Bond Purchase Agreement shall set forth the 

principal amount of the Bonds, principal maturities and dates, interest rates and interest payment 

dates, redemption provisions, if any, purchase price to be paid by the Underwriter with respect to 

the Bonds and such other terms and provisions as the City Manager determines to be necessary 

or appropriate in connection with the sale of the Bonds.  The Bond Purchase Agreement and the 

terms of the Bonds set forth therein shall be approved by an order adopted by the City Manager 

at the time of the sale of the Bonds.  The Mayor, the City Clerk, the City Manager and the City 

Treasurer are each hereby authorized to do all things necessary to effectuate the sale, issuance, 

delivery, transfer and exchange of the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this resolution.  

In making the determination in the order authorizing the sale of the Bonds and in the Bond 

Purchase Agreement with respect to principal maturities and dates, interest rates, purchase price 

of the Bonds and compensation to be paid to the Underwriter, the City Manager shall be limited 

as follows: 

(b) The final maturity date of the Bonds shall not be later than November 1, 2033. 

(c) The purchase price of the Bonds shall not be less than 97% of the principal 

amount thereof. 



-16- 

(d) The Underwriter’s discount with respect to the Bonds or the compensation to be 

paid to the Underwriter shall not exceed 1.00% of the principal amount of the Bonds. 

17. REPLACEMENT OF BONDS

18. 

.  Upon receipt by the City Clerk of proof of 

ownership of an unmatured Bond, of satisfactory evidence that the Bond has been lost, 

apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken and of security or indemnity that complies with 

applicable law and is satisfactory to the City Clerk, the City Clerk may authorize the bond 

registrar and paying agent to deliver a new executed Bond to replace the Bond lost, apparently 

destroyed or wrongfully taken in compliance with applicable law.  In the event an outstanding 

matured Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the City Clerk may authorize the 

bond registrar and paying agent to pay the Bond without presentation upon the receipt of the 

same documentation required for the delivery of a replacement Bond.  The bond registrar and 

paying agent, for each new Bond delivered or paid without presentation as provided above, shall 

require the payment of expenses, including counsel fees, which may be incurred by the bond 

registrar and paying agent and the City in the premises.  Any Bond delivered pursuant to the 

provisions of this Section 17 in lieu of any Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken 

shall be of the same form and tenor and be secured in the same manner as the Bond in 

substitution for which such Bond was delivered. 

TAX COVENANT

19. 

.  The City covenants to comply with all applicable 

requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), necessary to 

assure that the interest on the Bonds will be and will remain excludable from gross income for 

federal income tax purposes.  The Mayor, the City Clerk, the City Manager, the City Treasurer 

and other appropriate officials of the City are authorized to do all things necessary (including the 

making of such covenants of the City as shall be appropriate) to assure that the interest on the 

Bonds will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  The City Manager is authorized to cause the 

preparation of an official statement for the Bonds for purposes of enabling compliance with Rule 

15c2-12 issued under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”) and to do 



-17- 

all other things necessary to enable compliance with the Rule.  After the award of the Bonds, the 

City will provide copies of a “final official statement” (as defined in paragraph (e)(3) of the 

Rule) on a timely basis and in reasonable quantity as requested by the Underwriter to enable the 

Underwriter to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the rules of the Municipal 

Securities Rulemaking Board. 

20. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

21. 

.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are authorized to 

execute and deliver in the name and on behalf of the City a continuing disclosure certificate to 

comply with the requirements for a continuing disclosure undertaking of the City pursuant to 

paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, and amendments to such certificate from time to time in accordance 

with the terms of such certificate (the certificate and any amendments thereto are collectively 

referred to herein as the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”).  The City hereby covenants and 

agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure 

Certificate. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

As registered municipal advisor: Bendzinski & Co., Municipal Finance Advisors 

  The following are appointed to act in the 

following capacities with respect to the Bonds: 

     Detroit, Michigan 

As Underwriter:   Fifth Third Securities, Inc. 
     Cincinnati, Ohio 
 

As bond counsel: Dickinson Wright PLLC 
 Troy, Michigan 



-18- 

 

22. CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.

 

  All resolutions and parts of resolutions 

insofar as they may be in conflict herewith are rescinded. 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

YEAS:              

              

              

NAYS:             

ABSTENTIONS:            



-19- 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 )ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly 

adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held on August 12, 2013, the original of which resolution is on file in my office.  I further certify 

that notice of said meeting was given in accordance with the provisions of the Open Meetings 

Act, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended (MCL 15.261 et. seq.). 

 

 

 

       ___________________________________  
       M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
       Troy City Clerk 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 



-20- 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Estimate of Anticipated Tax Increment Revenues 
 

Fiscal Year  
Ending June 30   

2015 
Amount 

$1,023,834 
2016 978,617 
2017 894,896 
2018 895,059 
2019 895,227 
2020 954,541 
2021 1,014,449 
2022 1,074,956 
2023 1,136,068 
2024 1,197,791 
2025 1,322,472 
2026 1,449,646 
2027 1,579,364 
2028 1,711,677 
2029 1,846,635 
2030 1,984,293 
2031 2,124,703 
2032 2,267,922 
2033 2,414,006 
2034 2,563,011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLOOMFIELD 90528-10 1305754v1 



stewartc
Text Box
E-02  Resolution Attachment:  Site Plan & Rezoning Plan



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: August 7, 2013 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

Subject: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 744) – Proposed 
Belleclaire Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of 
Lamb (part of 4210 Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) 
District to RT (One Family Attached Residential) District 

 
The applicant, Mondrian Properties Belleclaire LLC, seeks a rezoning of the subject parcel 
from R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family Attached Residential) 
District.  The applicant indicated that the rezoning is needed in order to bring the site into 
closer compliance with the Master Plan.  Their intent is to develop an attached condominium 
development on the property. 
 
The site is within the Rochester Road classification in the City of Troy Master Plan.  This 
classification calls for lower impact uses such as condominiums along the corridor frontage 
between the more intense nodes located at the major road intersections. 
 
Adjacent properties along Rochester Road to the north and south are presently zoned RT, 
as is a parcel to the southwest across Rochester Road. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request.   
 
City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request from R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District to RT (One Family Attached Residential) District.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Locational Maps (2) 
2. Planning Commission agenda item from July 9, 2013 Regular meeting 
3. Planning Commission Minutes from the July 9, 2013 Regular Meeting (excerpt) 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 744  Belleclaire Condominiums  Sec 14\CC Memo_Public Hearing 2013 08 12.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
E-02



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

20,203

1:

Feet20,2030 10,101



4210 Rochester (part of), Z 744

1: 1,216

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1010203 203Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

5/30/2013

Legend:



PC 2013.07.09 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
 
DATE: July 2, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 744) – 

Proposed Belleclaire Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of 
Wattles, South side of Lamb (part of 4210 Rochester), Section 14, From 
R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family Attached 
Residential) District 

 
The applicant, Mondrian Properties Belleclaire LLC, seeks a rezoning of the subject 
parcel from R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family Attached 
Residential) District.  The applicant indicated that the rezoning is needed in order to 
bring the site into closer compliance with the Master Plan.   
 
The site is within the Rochester Road classification in the City of Troy Master Plan.  
This classification calls for lower impact uses such as condominiums along the corridor 
frontage between the more intense nodes located at the major road intersections. 
 
Adjacent properties along Rochester Road to the north and south are presently zoned 
RT, as is a parcel to the southwest across Rochester Road. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request.  CWA prepared the report with 
input from various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and 
Fire.  City Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees 
with the recommendation.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the July 9, 2013 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 744  Belleclaire Condominiums  Sec 14\PC Memo 07 09 2013.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 744) – Proposed Belleclaire Condominiums, 
East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of Lamb (part of 4210 Rochester), 
Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family Attached 
Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to RT rezoning request, located on the east side of Rochester Road, north 
of Wattles, south side of Lamb Road, part of 4210 Rochester Road, in Section 14, being 
approximately 1.084 acres in size, be approved. 
 
Yes:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 744  Belleclaire Condominiums  Sec 14\Proposed PC Resolution 07 09 2013.doc 



4210 Rochester (part of), Z 744

1: 1,216

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1010203 203Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

5/30/2013

Legend:



4210 Rochester (part of), Z 744

1: 1,216

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1010203 203Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

5/30/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



103

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Rochester Road: 

Green Corridor

Regional model for a green corridor• 
A strong focus on access management• 
Heightened emphasis on strong stormwater • 
management techniques
Retail catering to regional traffi  c• 
Innovative site design techniques applied • 
through PUD use to allow for redevelopment 
for shallow lots

Rochester Road carries high volumes of traffi  c 
causing backups at intersections.  The abutting 
development pattern from Big Beaver Road 
north to Long Lake Road is a continuous row of 
highway-oriented commercial uses.  North of 
Long Lake Road, the land use pattern evolves, 
becoming a mix of commercial and offi  ce near 
the intersections and older single-family homes 
and multiple-family complexes in between.     

If Rochester Road is to have a defi ned 

role and pleasing character in the City, it 

must undergo a signifi cant transformation 

over time.  Ultimately, the Rochester Road 
Corridor will become a regional showcase 
for eff ective stormwater management and 
enhancement of the natural environment, while 
encouraging a combination of high-quality 
land uses.   Eff ective landscaping focused on 

native plantings, and improved land use and 
access management along Rochester will create 
a green corridor that provides a high level 
of service for motorists, and which provides 
an eff ective natural buff er between high 
traffi  c volumes and people visiting adjacent 
properties.  The creation of this green corridor 
would occur primarily in the right-of-way along 
road frontages and in the median of a future 
boulevard.  

While the emphasis on innovative 

stormwater management is specifi cally called 

on for the Rochester Road Corridor, new 

low-impact techniques are to be encouraged 

elsewhere throughout the City of Troy.  As 
noted in Chapter 7, innovative stormwater 
management is a priority for the community.  
Rochester Road will play an important role in 
this City-wide initiative by proving a regional 
showcase for such techniques.

New construction along the corridor may 
include detention and retention basins 
that work together from site-to-site with 
other features to create a continuous, linear 
landscape feature.  By connecting properties, 
the basins create visual relief from traffi  c.  
Low impact development methods will 

be used throughout the corridor to fi lter 

stormwater runoff .   Rochester Road will also be 
characterized by eff ective new signage, high-
quality lighting, and eff ective, complementary 
site and architectural design. 

Uses along Rochester Road will include a 
variety of mixed uses, established in a “pulsing” 
pattern where the most intense mixed-use or 
exclusively non-residential development will 
occur near the Neighborhood Nodes situated 
along its main intersections.  Lower-impact 
uses, such as small scale retail or condominiums 
should be encouraged along the corridor 
frontage between these nodes.

ROCHESTER ROAD



104 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

Commercial strip development should be • 
limited and gradually replaced with mixed 
use.

Commercial development should be • 
encouraged to expand in the form of dense 
multi-story mixed-use concentrations 
at major intersections.  Concentrations 
are limited to within 1,000 feet of the 
intersection.  

The areas between nodes should develop as • 
lower-rise offi  ce and multiple-family.    The 
height diff erences encourage a visual “pulse.”

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Parking areas should be within rear yards • 
or interior parts of the site.  A single row of 
parking may be appropriate in front and 
exterior side yards in limited applications.

Parking will connect to adjacent sites, • 
eventually linking several developments 
with a rear access lane.  The number of 
drives connecting to Rochester Road should 
be minimized.

Defi ned internal walks will connect the • 
businesses and buildings together.

Internal walks will be connected to the • 
public sidewalk system.

Buildings will be separated from street traffi  c • 
by a greenbelt or sculptural storm water 
detention basin. 

Height and size of signage will be reduced • 
to contain visual clutter.

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

The height at nodes will be multi-story not • 
exceeding four stories.       

The height between nodes should not • 
exceed two stories.

Ground level stories should be, at a • 
minimum, twelve feet in height; with large 
expanses of transparent glass at intersection 
nodes.  

Fenestration for the ground level of • 
buildings in nodes will be accentuated 
through the use of awnings, overhangs or 
trim detailing.  

Design for a Rain Garden in Troy; City of Troy

Lovell Pond in Troy; an example of an innovative, urban 
stormwater basin; Photo by Jennifer Lawson



 
 

 Date: June 28, 2013 
 
 

 Rezoning Analysis   
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 

Applicant: Joseph Maniaci 
  
Project Name: Belleclaire Condominiums 
 
Location: 4120 Rochester Road (northwest portion) 
 
Current Zoning: R-1C, Single Family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: To rezone northwest 1.1 acres of Tax Parcel #20-14-351-083 from R-1C 

to RT, One-Family Attached Residential 
 
Required Information: As noted in review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The purpose of this analysis is to assist the City in determining the appropriateness of rezoning the 
northwest 1.1 acres of 4120 Rochester Road from R-1C, Single Family Residential to RT, One-Family 
Attached Residential.  The rezoning would allow development of a nine (9) unit attached single-family 
development at the southeast corner of Rochester Road and Lamb Drive.  This site was formerly 
developed as a nursery containing an existing building, shed and greenhouse.  The eastern portion of 
the site was recently approved for a nine (9) unit single-family residential development (Belleclaire 
Estates).   
 
While a site plan was submitted by the applicant, site plan approval is not part of this application.  A 
complete site plan application will be submitted by the applicant if the rezoning is granted by the City 
Council.   
 
 
 
 
 



Belleclaire Condominiums 
June 28, 2013 

 2 

Location of Subject Property: 
 
East side of Rochester Road and south side of Lamb Drive. 

 
 
 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
 
The parcel is 1.1 net acres in area: 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 

Nine (9) attached, single family homes.     
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 

The subject property is currently vacant 
 
Current Zoning: 

The property is currently zoned R-1C, One-family Residential District.  

Area to be rezoned 

Approved 9-Unit 
Belleclaire Estates 



Belleclaire Condominiums 
June 28, 2013 

 3 

 
MASTER PLAN  
 
The subject site lies in the Rochester Road future land use category, on the edge of the Single-Family 
Residential category. The intent of the Rochester Road future land use category is described in the 
Master Plan as follows: 
 

Rochester Road carries high volumes of traffic causing backups at intersections.  The abutting 
development pattern from Big Beaver Road north to Long Lake Road is a continuous row of 
highway-oriented commercial uses.  North of Long Lake Road, the land use pattern evolves, 
becoming a mix of commercial and office near the intersections and older single-family homes 
and multiple-family complexes in between.      
 
Uses along Rochester Road will include a variety of mixed uses, established in a “pulsing” pattern 
where the most intense mixed-use or exclusively non-residential development will occur near the 
Neighborhood Nodes situated along its main intersections.  Lower-impact uses, such as small 
scale retail or condominiums should be encouraged along the corridor frontage between these 
nodes. 

 
The Rochester Road category is designed to have “soft edges,” that is, it does not closely follow parcel 
lines and is intended to be applied to a wide variety of sites having access to Rochester Road.  The use of 
this site as attached residential uses will provide an appropriate transition between Rochester Road and 
the adjacent single-family residential neighborhood. The proposed rezoning to RT is consistent with the 
overall goals of the Master Plan and the specific recommendations for this area.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
ZONING and LAND USE 
 
The zoning, land use and Master Plan designations for the surrounding parcels are shown in the table 
below:  
 

 Zoning Master Plan Land Use 

North R-T, Residential Attached Rochester Road Single-family attached homes 

South R-T, Residential Attached Rochester Road Single-family attached homes 

East R-1C, One-Family Residential Single Family Residential Single-family homes 

West R-1C, One-Family Residential  Rochester Road Single-family homes 

 



Belleclaire Condominiums 
June 28, 2013 

 4 

 
 
 
The stated intent in the Zoning Ordinance of the R-1C District is as follows “…The Master Plan recognizes 
that single-family residential neighborhoods are vital components of the City, and comprise the majority 
of the land area within the City. The intent of the R-1A through R-1E Districts is to provide areas for 
single-family dwellings with the primary distinction being a range of densities, implemented through 
varying lot sizes. The R-1A through R-1E Districts are further intended to preserve and improve upon the 
quality of residential neighborhoods while permitting a limited number of other compatible uses which 
support residential neighborhoods.” 
 
The R-1C District permits a narrow range of uses compatible with, or dedicated to, residential purposes.  
 
The proposed RT District allows for two-family and attached single-family dwellings in addition to the 
narrow range of uses compatible with or dedicated to residential purposes.  The RT district is designed 
to permit attached residential dwellings which may serve as a transition between high intensity or non-
residential areas and low density residential areas.   The RT District differs from the existing R-1C 
classification only in that it allows for two-family and attached single-family dwellings. 
 
The subject site is surrounded by attached single-family and traditional single-family residential 
development.  The proposed RT zoning district will provide a transition area from the Rochester Road 
corridor to the neighboring single-family residential developments to the east.  We find the proposed 
rezoning request complies with the surrounding zoning and land uses. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
 
 
 

Subject Site 



Belleclaire Condominiums 
June 28, 2013 

 5 

TRAFFIC IMPACT AND SITE ACCESS 
 
The proposed rezoning would allow development of a nine (9) unit attached single-family condominium 
building and associated site improvements.  This type of development will result in minimal daily trips, 
and will not negatively impact traffic patterns.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
STANDARDS OF REVIEW 
 
Section 16.03 C. states that a rezoning may only be approved upon a finding and determination that all 
of the following are satisfied: 
 

1. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Master Plan.  If the current zoning is in material 
conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the following: 

a. A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted. 
b. A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 
c. An error in the Master Plan. 

2. The proposed rezoning will not cause nor increase any non-conformity. 

3. Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be capable of 
accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the development. 

4. The rezoning will not impact public health, safety, or welfare. 

5. The rezoning will ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 

The rezoning of the subject site to RT is in compliance with the City of Troy Master Plan.  Further, it is 
consistent with the development pattern of this area of the City, and will not be a detriment to the 
public health, safety or welfare, and will not burden public services and facilities. 

Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SITE PLAN COMMENTS 
 
While a review of the site plan is not part of the rezoning application review process, we note the 
following issues should be considered by the applicant for the future site plan submittal: 
 

1. Confirmation that the westerly dwelling unit will face Rochester Road, providing a street 
presence. 

2. Consolidate curb cuts.  
3. A rear yard is provided along the east property line, and a side yard along the south property 

line distancing the proposed development from the single-family development to the east. 
 
 
 



Belleclaire Condominiums 
June 28, 2013 

 6 

SUMMARY 
 
We find the proposed rezoning request is consistent with the Master Plan and complies with the 
surrounding zoning and land uses.  We recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of the northwest 
portion of Parcel #20-14-351-083 from R-1C, One Family Residential to RT, One Family Attached. 
   

   
   
#225-02-1318 
 
Cc: Joe Maniaci via JManiaci@mondrianproperties.com 
 Horizon Engineering via nrobinson@horizoneng.net 
 

 

mailto:JManiaci@mondrianproperties.com
mailto:nrobinson@horizoneng.net


P.O. Box 1821 58 
Shelby Twp., MI48318HOR-IZC)N 

Phone 586.453.8097 
ENGINEERING LLC Fax 586.580.0053 

May 23,2013 

Planning Department 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

Re: 	 Rezoning Request for "Belleclaire Condominiums" 
Part of #4210 Rochester Road 

Dear City of Troy Planning Department: 

Attached to this letter please find the following items: 

• One (1) Rezoning Request Application. 
• One (1) Rezoning Application Checklist. 
• One (1) Certified Topographical (Boundary) Survey. 
• One (1) Site Plan & Rezoning Plan. 
• One (1) CD containing PDF copies of the above items. 
• Two (2) checks ($1,800 Rezoning Request Fee and $1 ,500 Escrow Fee). 

These materials are being submitted for your review pursuant to placement on a 
Planning Commission agenda for a Rezoning Request for a part of the property 
located at #4210 Rochester Road and as described on the enclosed Site Plan & 
Rezoning Plan. 

The subject property is currently zoned R-1 C, one-family residential district. An 
application for Site Condominium review has been filed with the City for the 
easterly portion of. the property to be developed as zoned into a one-family 
residential site condominium (proposed "Belleclaire Estates"). 

The balance of the property, being the westerly portion and the subject of the 
enclosed Rezoning Application, is proposed to be developed as a one-family 
attached residential condominium, which requires rezoning from the R-1 C district 
to the RT district. 

Though zoned R-1 C, the property has historically been used as a commercial 
operation for landscaping and nursery sales and services. Redeveloping as an 
attached condominium reduces the intensity of the use and brings the site into 
closer conformity to the City's Master Plan which generally calls for lower-impact 
uses, such as condominiums, along the Rochester Road corridor between the 
higher-intensity commercial nodes located at the main roadway intersections. 



May 23,2013 
Planning Department, City of Troy 
Re: Rezoning Request for "Belleclaire Condominiums" 

Neighboring developments to the north and south are zoned RT and developed 
as one-family attached condominiums. This property currently interrupts an 
otherwise contiguous district. By rezoning from R-1 C to RT and redeveloping 
from a commercial operation to condominiums the property becomes more 
harmonious with surrounding developments and the neighborhood in general, 
and provides a more acceptable transition in use and intensity between 
Rochester Road and the single family R-1 C district to the east. 

Your consideration of our request is greatly appreciated. Please do not hesitate 
to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

Nathan P. Robinson, P.E. 
President 
nrobinson@horizoneng.net 

cc.: Joseph Maniaci, Mondrian Properties 

attachments 

mailto:nrobinson@horizoneng.net






PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  JULY 9, 2013 
   
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 744) – Proposed 

Belleclaire Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of Lamb 
(part of 4210 Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT 
(One Family Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed rezoning application.  He reported the rezoning 
request is consistent with the Master Plan and complies with the surrounding 
zoning and land uses.  Mr. Carlisle stated support for the rezoning request. 
 
Joseph Maniaci of Mondrian Properties and Nathan Robinson of Horizon 
Engineering were present.  Mr. Maniaci briefly addressed stormwater 
management for the proposed condominium development. 
 
Several members applauded the petitioner for his interest and investment in the 
City. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-055 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to RT rezoning request, located on the east side of 
Rochester Road, north of Wattles, south side of Lamb Road, part of 4210 
Rochester Road, in Section 14, being approximately 1.084 acres in size, be 
approved. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



stewartc
Text Box
I-03



stewartc
Text Box
I-04



























CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 22, 2013 
 

- 1 - 

Assistant Pastor Scott DeClaire from Troy Assembly of God performed the Invocation.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, July 22, 2013, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Doug Tietz 

 
Resolution #2013-07-127 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Pennington at the Regular City Council Meeting of July 22, 2013, due to being out of the 
county. 
 
Yes: Slater, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Tietz  
No: None 
Absent: Pennington  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Troy High School 2013 Girls Varsity Soccer Team Division Champions 

Presentation (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director) 
 
C-2 Carla Reeb, Troy Nature Center Executive Director will Present Information on the 

Troy Nature Center Open House/Ice Cream Social Sponsored by the Troy Nature 
Society (No backup) 

 
C-3 Transit Center Status Report – July 2013 (Introduced by:  Steven Vandette, City 

Engineer)  

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 22, 2013 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Reinhardt, Marv Spoke on Items O-01a, O-03g, and O-5. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Liquor Advisory Committee; Traffic Committee 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2013-07-128 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Campbell  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 
 Matthew Binkowski 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015 Term currently held by: Vacancy – David Ogg Resigned 
 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 22, 2013 
 

- 3 - 

Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015 Tim Brandstetter 
 Term currently held by: Vacancy - David Ogg Resigned 
 

Yes: Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Tietz, Slater  
No: None 
Absent: Pennington  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Resolution #2013-07-129 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015 Paul McCown (Alternate) 

 
Term currently held by: Vacancy – David Eisenbacher 

Appointed to Full Member Term  
 

Yes: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Tietz, Slater, Campbell  
No: None 
Absent: Pennington  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-3 No Request for Closed Session  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 22, 2013 
 

- 4 - 

I-4 Contract Ratification – Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) 
(CITY ADMINISTRATION REMOVED THE ITEM FROM THE AGENDA) 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2013-07-130 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: Henderson, McGinnis, Tietz, Slater, Campbell, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Pennington  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2013-07-130-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Special Meeting Minutes-Draft – July 8, 2013 
b) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – July 8, 2013 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 
a) Certificate of Recognition Troy High School 2013 Girls Varsity Soccer Team 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Fitness 

Equipment 
 
Resolution #2013-07-130-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to PURCHASE and INSTALL 
seven (7) New Matrix T5x Treadmills, four (4) new Matrix U3x Upright Cycles, two (2) Matrix 
E5x Ellipticals, and three (3) Matrix A5x Ascent Trainers at the Troy Community Center, less 
Trade-ins of seven (7) Matrix T5x Treadmills, four (4) Matrix U3x Upright Cycles, two (2) Matrix 
E5x Ellipticals, and three (3) Matrix A5x Ascent Trainers to the low bidder meeting 
specifications, All Pro Exercise of Farmington Hills, MI, for an estimated net total cost of 
$54,685.00, all at prices contained in the bid tabulation dated July 3, 2013. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 22, 2013 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
J-5 Medi-Go Plus Service Agreement 
 
Resolution #2013-07-130-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the request for funding in the amount of entire municipal and community 
credits transferred from SMART for Troy Medi-Go Plus, and the funding agreement between 
the City of Troy and Troy Medi-Go Plus are hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents and copies shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-6 Addendum #1 – Contract 13-1 – Square Lake Road Mill and Asphalt Overlay  
 
Resolution #2013-07-130-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 13-1, Square Lake Road Mill & HMA Overlay, with Florence 
Cement Company, 12585 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315, BE AMENDED to 
include mill and overlay work along Square Lake Road from Rochester to Livernois at an 
estimated cost of $380,000.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 15% of the total project cost. 
 
J-7 Amendment #2 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz, and 

McCliment Inc. for Engineering Services for the John R, Long Lake to Square Lake 
Reconstruction Project No. 02.203.5 

 
Resolution #2013-07-130-J-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the Second Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 02-
5178/S1, between the City of Troy and Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for the 
reconstruction of John R, between Long Lake and Square Lake is hereby APPROVED at an 
estimated cost to the City of Troy not to exceed $94,002.36, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the amendment, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of the meeting.  
 
J-8 Amendment #2 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz, and 

McCliment Inc. for Engineering Services for the John R, Square Lake to South 
Boulevard Reconstruction Project No. 02.204.5 

 
Resolution #2013-07-130-J-8 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 22, 2013 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That the Second Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement No. 02-
5179/S1, between the City of Troy and Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. (OHM) for the 
reconstruction of John R, between Square Lake and South Boulevard is hereby APPROVED at 
an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to exceed $79,827.82, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the amendment, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of the meeting.  
 
J-9 Acquisition of Property as a Result of Foreclosure for Non-Payment of Property 

Taxes 
 
Resolution #2013-07-130-J-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Engineering Department is hereby AUTHORIZED TO PURCHASE a 
foreclosed property having Sidwell #88-20-26-200-086 for the amount of unpaid real property 
taxes, interest and finance charges in an amount not to exceed $1,000 plus closing and 
administrative costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That all current active special assessments, if any, BE 
VACATED. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) August 12, 2013 – Rezoning Application File Z 744 – Proposed Belleclaire 

Condominiums, East Side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South Side of Lamb (Part of 
4210 Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One 
Family Attached Residential) District 

b) August 12, 2013 – Proposed Amendments to Troy Downtown Development Authority 
(TDDA) Development and Tax Increment Financing Plan  

 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Reinhardt, Marv Spoke about various topics. 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Fleming requested an update on the cleanup efforts as a result of the storms 
on Friday evening.  City Manager Kischnick provided an explanation of the direction and the 
priority of the cleanup efforts. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 22, 2013 
 

- 7 - 

Mayor Slater requests a Study Session to discuss maintenance (snow removal, mowing, 
flowers, etc.) of the right-of-way.  It is the consensus of City Council to schedule a Study 
Session in September. 
 
Mayor Slater announced that there are three (3) City Council Member seats available for 
election in November.  Petition packets are available at the City Clerk’s Office and the petition 
filing deadline is 4:00 PM on Tuesday, August 13, 2013. 
 
Council Member McGinnis provided information to the City Council about the MML Annual 
Meeting scheduled for September 17-20, 2013 in Detroit.  Council Member McGinnis requested 
that City Administration take into consideration the MML Annual Meeting when scheduling the 
Transit Center Grand Opening in September.   
 
Council Member Tietz followed up on discussions from previous study sessions pertaining to 
the ICMA recommendation to investigate obtaining outside bids for prosecution services.  
Council Member Tietz requests a Study Session on August 26, 2013 for City Administration to 
provide information and options for City Council to discuss on the process of obtaining quotes 
for prosecution services. 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – May 21, 2013 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – June 5, 2013 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final – June 12, 2013 
d) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft – June 25, 2013 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final – June 25, 2013 
f) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – July 10, 2013 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  
a) The South Oakland Intelligence Consortium (SONIC) Enjoyed Working with the Troy 

Special Investigations Unit (SIU) 
b) To Paul Evans and Gary Bowers From April Church Regarding Wonderful Service 
c) To Paul Evans From Debbie Schuh Regarding Quick Service 
d) To Mayor, City Council and City Manager From Carol Russell Regarding Expedient 

Response to Residents 
e) To Sam Lamerato From Kathy Leenhouts, City of Clawson 
f) To Chief Gary Mayer From John Reynolds From Delphi  
g) To City Council From Genisys Credit Union Regarding Being Named One of the Best 

Towns For Families  
Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 22, 2013 
 

- 8 - 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-5 2013 Second Quarter Litigation Report 

Noted and Filed 
 
O-6 Troy Named One of America’s Top 10 Best Towns for Families by Family Circle 

Magazine 
Noted and Filed 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 
P-1  No Study Items  

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1 No Closed Session Requested 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 8:22 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  August 6, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets and Drains 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Portable Conveyor 
 
 
History 
Snow and ice that accumulates on road and sidewalk surfaces create hazardous conditions for motorists and 
pedestrians.  When these winter conditions surpass a safety threshold, the snow and ice accumulation can 
create emergency situations requiring the city to respond accordingly.  The City of Troy implements a 
developed plan to mitigate the hazards created by accumulating snow and ice on road and sidewalk surfaces.  
Mitigation efforts include but are not limited to plowing and/or salting of road and sidewalk surfaces.  The City 
of Troy’s goal is to abate hazardous conditions created from snow and ice accumulation on major roads, city 
operated facilities, secondary roads, and city maintained sidewalks. 
 
The City of Troy dispenses an average of 7,000 tons of salt annually to ensure these goals are met.  To secure 
a better rate per ton on salt and so as to ensure the city has an established inventory; the majority of the salt is 
purchased prior to the winter season.  The salt is stored in a large dome located at the Department of Public 
Works.  The salt dome has an 8,500 ton capacity.  Historically the salt was loaded into the dome at a rate of 1 
ton a minute with the use of a front-end loader.  The proposed purchase will allow the city to load the salt dome 
at a rate of 6 tons per minute and will also minimize hazards that were experienced with the historic loading 
procedure.  Use of the new portable conveyor equipment will also allow manpower historically dedicated to this 
operation to be redeployed to other tasks. 
 
Purchasing 
On August 1, 2013, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for one (1) 65’ portable 
stainless steel conveyor.  The bid was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) 
website; www.mitn.info and the bid was also sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  Two (2) bid responses 
were received.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors: 

Companies notified via MITN 77 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 1 

Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 1 

Troy Companies notified Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  19 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 

  
 
 
 
 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 

      

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

After reviewing the bid proposal, Kimco USA, Inc. of Marshall, IL was the low bidder meeting specifications and 
is being recommended for the purchase of one (1) 65’ portable stainless steel conveyor for the salt dome.   
 
Additionally, Kurt Bovensiep conducted an on-site visit to inspect the equipment.  As a result of the site visit it is 
also recommended that the purchase include a safety shield.  This safety shield attaches to the hopper on the 
conveyor and is an additional safety feature for the conveyor.  The cost of the safety shield is $1,500.00.  Even 
though this feature was not included in the bid specifications for additional safety it is recommended that the 
safety shield be included and purchased.   
 
Financial 
Funds for this piece of equipment are available in the Capital Budget of the Public Works Streets Division. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to purchase one (1) 65’ portable stainless steel conveyor 
to the low bidder meeting specifications, Kimco USA, Inc. of Marshall, IL, for an estimated total cost of 
$82,956.20, at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened August 1, 2013.  Included in this purchase price is 
an additional $1,500.00 which is not represented in the bid tabulation for an additional safety feature.  The 
award is contingent upon the contractor’s submission of properly executed bid documents including insurance 
certificates, and all other specified requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 ITB-COT 13-22.docx 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 13-22
BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
PORTABLE CONVEYOR

Kimco USA, Inc. Dome Corporation of 
America

Marshall, IL Saginaw, MI
Ck# 5005587605 203951
Ck. Amount $3,250.00 $3,250.00

PROPOSAL:  To provide and deliver one (1) 65' portable conveyor for the City of Troy Department of Public Works in 
accordance with all bid specifications.

TOTAL BID PRICE OF: $81,456.20 $100,685.00

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hours of Operation M - F 8:00-4:00 CST 8:00-5:00 pm

Time for Service Calls 48 hours 24 hours

24HR Phone # (217) 512-0157 (217) 826-8059
Contact Name Blake D. Coffey Larry Yargus

AUTHORIZED DEALER: Y OR N Yes Yes

DELIVERY DATE:  
Can Meet Yes Yes
Cannot Meet
Offers
Work Shall Commence

REFERENCES: Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet Yes Yes
Cannot Meet

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED: Y OR N Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 days Net 30 days

EXCEPTIONS: Yes, attached. Yes, see exhibit B.

WARRANTY: Limited one (1) year One (1) year

FORMS COMPLETED:
Legal Status of Bidder: Y or N Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit: Y or N Yes Yes
Certification regarding Debarment: Y or N Yes Yes
"Iran- Linked" Business Y or N Yes Yes

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:
Enna Bachelor _______________________________
Emily Frontera MaryBeth Murz
Irene Newman Purchasing Manager

Opening Date -- 8/1/2013
Date Reviewed -- 8/2/2013

October 15, 2013



GGM/TC      i:\1 office coordinator\agenda\agenda items\2013 agendas\cc shir tikvah parking waiver sept 2013.doc 

 

 
July 23, 2013 
 
 
TO:    Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police   
   William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions  
 
Background: 
 
The Congregation Shir Tikvah is requesting that the parking restrictions on the East side of 
Northfield Parkway from the entrance of Boulan Park to the entrance of the synagogue be waived 
on the following dates and times: 

 
 Wednesday, September 4, 2013, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
 Thursday, September 5, 2013, 9:00 am – 5:00 pm 
 Friday, September 13, 2013, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
 Saturday, September 14, 2013, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm 

 
Congregation Shir Tikvah is conducting events related to the observance of the High Holidays on 
these dates and times; although they have arranged for additional parking at Stonehaven Church 
on Wattles Road, they fear they will not have sufficient parking space for all attendees. 
 
The waiving of the restrictions would allow attendees to park on the dirt shoulder of Northfield 
Parkway. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
City Ordinance prohibits parking on Northfield Parkway; therefore, City Council action is required to 
grant a variance. 
 
Congregation Shir Tikvah makes such requests and is granted a variance regularly; no problems 
have ever been reported.  
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-05



 

 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  August 1, 2013 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements  
 Hillmore Street Sanitary Sewer Extension - Project No. 13.401.3 
 
 
History 
 
The Hillmore Street Sanitary Sewer Extension proposed by Kevin Baird is located at Hillmore Street 
between Rochester and John R Roads, Section 11.   
 
Engineering plans for this sanitary sewer extension were reviewed and recently approved by the 
Engineering Department.  The plans include municipal improvements; Sanitary Sewer, which will be 
constructed by Kevin Baird on behalf of the City of Troy.  The required fees and refundable escrow 
deposits in the form of Check, that will assure completion of the municipal improvements, have been 
provided by Kevin Baird (see attached Private Agreement).  
 
Financial 
 
See attached summary of required deposits and fees for this Private Agreement. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approval of the Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) is 
recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-06













 
 
Date  August 5, 2013 
 
 
TO:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund 
  

History 
The Parks, Streets, and Drains Divisions are responsible for the maintenance of all municipal property 
including the control of pests.  Park patrons, golf course participants, and property owners abutting some City 
of Troy maintained retention ponds have become accustomed to using these facilities with limited nuisances 
like mosquitoes.  The objective of mosquito control is not to eradicate all mosquitoes but to limit the population 
to a tolerable threshold.  The control targets both mosquito larva and adult mosquitoes at city parks, golf 
courses, cemeteries, and some retention ponds.  Although Oakland County Department of Health and Human 
Services recommends the best form of protection from mosquitoes is personal protection products, the 
mosquito control products used by professionals will decrease the mosquito population at some of our 
facilities. Based on the County formula the City of Troy is eligible for reimbursement of County approved 
expenses up to $11,956.08, which is approximately one-third of the total annual expense of $31,747.59. To 
qualify for reimbursement of eligible expenses, City Council must pass a resolution authorizing the 
reimbursement request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
Lower mosquito populations reduce the danger of insect borne diseases being transferred to the general 
public, thereby enhancing the health and safety of the community. Also by reducing the population of 
mosquitoes adds to the quality of life for Troy residents using our parks and other outdoor facilities. 
 
Options: 
The Parks, Streets, and Drains Divisions recommends the City Council approve the request to seek 
reimbursement from Oakland County’s West Nile Virus Fund.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

stewartc
Text Box
J-07



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: August 1, 2013 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: TERMINATION OF PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) AGREEMENT, TROY 

PLAZA PUD – West side of Crooks, North side of New King (5500 New King), Section 8, 
Presently Zoned OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB (Community Business) Districts 

 
 
On October 8, 2012, City Council conditionally rezoned the subject property from PUD (Planned 
Unit Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB (Community Business) districts.  The 
resolution which rezoned the property also rescinded and abandoned the Planned Unit 
Development and related plans and documents. 
 
The title company has requested the recording of a formal document rescinding the Planned Unit 
Development, which would be filed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds and would provide 
clarity as to the status of the property.  The developer’s attorney has prepared the attached 
Termination of Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development Agreement, and has requested that City 
Council formally acknowledge receipt of this document.  The October 8, 2012 City Council resolution 
approving the Conditional Rezoning Agreement and rescinding the Troy Plaza Planned Unit 
Development and related plans and agreements is attached to the Termination, and will also be 
recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds.  
 
City Administration recommends approval of the proposed resolution.   
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _________________________ 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality Date 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Termination of Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development Agreement 
3. City Council Resolution #2012-10-188  
4. Planned Unit Development Agreement (rescinded October 8, 2012) 

 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-006  Troy Plaza  Sec 8\CC Memo Rescind PUD 08 12 2013.doc 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-08



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

21,056

1:

Feet21,0560 10,528



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

474

1:

Feet4740 237



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

385

1:

Feet3850 192











CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final October 8, 2012 
 
 
 
E-1 Public Hearing - Conditional Rezoning Application (File Number CR 006) – Proposed Troy 

Plaza Development, West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5500 New King), 
Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB 
(Community Business) Districts 

 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing public 
comment from Tom Gergich. 
 
Resolution #2012-10-188 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a proposed rezoning request from PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB (Community Business) Districts; and 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant voluntarily offered a number of conditions, as described in the Conditional 
Rezoning Agreement and related attachments, as per Section 16.04 of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, The subject property, located on the west side of Crooks, north side of New King (5500 
New King), parcel 88-20-08-276-002, being approximately 6 acres in size, is described and illustrated 
on the attached legal description drawing; and 
 
WHEREAS, The conditional rezoning was recommended for approval by the Planning Commission; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed rezoning is supported by the Master Plan and advances the general and 
specific development policies of the Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed rezoning would be consistent and non-disruptive to the surrounding land 
use pattern; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed rezoning will facilitate redevelopment of the site. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, City Council hereby RESCINDS and ABANDONS the Troy Plaza 
Planned Unit Development and related plans and agreements. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES the PUD to OM and CB Rezoning, 
including the Conditional Rezoning Agreement and related attachments. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site Plan and 
GRANTS Special Use Approval for the two proposed drive-throughs. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The City of Troy Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 







































stewartc
Text Box
O-01a







stewartc
Text Box
O-01b











Traffic Committee Minutes – June 19, 2013  Final 

Page 1 of 2 
 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, June 19, 2013 in 
the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting 
to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
PRESENT:  Sarah Binkowski 
    Ted Halsey 
    Richard Kilmer 
    Al Petrulis 
    Stevan Popovic 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
 
ABSENT:  None     
 
Also present: Cathy Martin, 2765 English  
    Amy Lindsay, Oakland University 
    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
     
2. Minutes – April 17, 2013 
 
RESOLUTION # 2013-06-08 
  
Moved by Halsey  
Seconded by Kilmer 
 
To approve the April 17, 2013 minutes as printed. 
 
YES:   All-6 
NO:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
3.  Request for No Parking Zone – 1017 Milverton  
 
This item was withdrawn by the petitioner prior to the meeting. 
 
4.  Request for Traffic Control – English at Windmill 
 
Cathy Martin of 2765 English requested that the intersection of English at Windmill be 
reviewed for the purpose of installing a Stop or Yield sign on the northbound Windmill 
approach to English.  Ms. Martin states that traffic entering from Windmill does not yield or 
stop at the intersection before proceeding onto English creating a hazardous situation. 
 
Ms. Martin spoke in support of the request at the meeting.  She stated that she has been 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01c



Traffic Committee Minutes – June 19, 2013  Final 

Page 2 of 2 
 

nearly hit by northbound Windmill traffic two times.  Her husband has also been in a close 
call recently.  English is a school route and has a direct connection to Dequindre so it 
carries the most traffic.  Windmill is a dead end.  Ms. Martin stated that others in her 
neighborhood have also had close calls at the intersection. 
 
Mr. Ziegenfelder spoke in support of a Stop sign at this location. 
 
Mr. Halsey stated that the request has merit as he observed traffic at this location and also 
would support the installation of a Stop sign on the northbound Windmill approach to 
Windmill. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2013-06-09 
  
Moved by Halsey  
Seconded by Kilmer 
 
RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee recommends that the intersection control be 
modified from “no traffic control” to a Stop sign on the Windmill Drive northbound approach 
to English Drive.  
 
YES:   All-6 
NO:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5. Public Comment 
 
There was no additional public comment. 
 
6. Other Business 
 
Mr. Halsey reports that the traffic signal at the cross over on Rochester Road, just north of 
Big Beaver, is not functioning correctly and is creating backups. Traffic Engineering will 
forward the concern to the RCOC.   
 
Mr. Halsey requested that the sewer cut on Hartland, west of Rochester Road, be 
inspected.  He is concerned that the temporary pavement repair has settled and needs to 
be repaired or replaced.  Engineering will follow up on this concern. 
 
7. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:03 p.m.  
 
                                          ___        
Pete Ziegenfelder, Chairperson    Bill Huotari, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2013\6_June 19\Minutes_20130619_FINAL.docx 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on July 9, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Robert Schultz 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-053 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-054 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 25, 2013 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Strat 
Abstain: Tagle 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
City Manager Brian Kischnick introduced himself and his family. 

 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 744) – Proposed Belleclaire 

Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of Lamb (part of 4210 
Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family 
Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed rezoning application.  He reported the rezoning 
request is consistent with the Master Plan and complies with the surrounding zoning and 
land uses.  Mr. Carlisle stated support for the rezoning request. 
 
Joseph Maniaci of Mondrian Properties and Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering 
were present.  Mr. Maniaci briefly addressed stormwater management for the proposed 
condominium development. 
 
Several members applauded the petitioner for his interest and investment in the City. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-055 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to RT rezoning request, located on the east side of Rochester Road, north 
of Wattles, south side of Lamb Road, part of 4210 Rochester Road, in Section 14, being 
approximately 1.084 acres in size, be approved. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 986) – Proposed MJR Theatres 

Troy Grand Cinema 16, Southeast Corner of Maple and Livernois (100 E Maple), 
Section 34, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave an overall review of his report prepared for the proposed MJR 
Theatres.  Mr. Carlisle addressed: 

 Building placement. 
 Traffic studies. 
 Pedestrian access. 
 Parking requirements, parking deviation. 
 Landscaping, screening along Livernois. 
 Photometric plan. 

 
Mr. Carlisle stated he and City staff worked diligently with the applicant to address 
concerns prior to consideration of the Board this evening.  He strongly supports the 
proposed development and recommends preliminary approval of the site plan with the 
six conditions as specified in his report, dated July 2, 2013. 
 
Michael Mihalich, founder and CEO of MJR Digital Cinemas, was present.  Mr. Mihalich 
said the conditions to site plan approval would be met.  He said they are on a fast track 
and anxious to hit ground.  Mr. Mihalich briefly addressed the use of bicycle racks. 
 
Brent LaVanway of Boss Engineering addressed stormwater management. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Bruce Gershenson, representing the property owners, said they are very pleased and very 
lucky to have MJR coming in.  He said it will be a tremendous boon to the area. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-056 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed MJR Theatres Troy Grand Cinema 
16 to 770 when a total of 1,067 spaces are required on the site based on the off-street 
parking space requirements for movie theaters.  This 297-space reduction maintains a 
ratio of 1 space per 4 seats which meets industry standards and is sufficient to meet 
parking demands on similar sites in Michigan, as described in a parking study submitted 
by the petitioner.  This reduction meets the standards of Section 13.06; and, 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 
8 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed MJR Theatres Troy Grand 
Cinema 16, located on the southeast corner of Maple and Livernois (100 E Maple), 
Section 34, within the MR (Maple Road) district, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. Install right-in/right-out traffic divider at the westernmost entrance along Maple Road 
2. Provide an 8-foot sidewalk along Maple and Livernois 
3. Increase internal pedestrian spine sidewalk to 6-feet 
4. Provide tree preservation plan  
5. Submit fixtures and detailed Photometric Plan 
6. Provide parking lot screening along Livernois through a hedge row or screen wall 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Adria Estates Site Condominium, 7 

units/lots, East side of Rochester, South of Square Lake, Section 11, Currently Zoned 
R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Edmunds said he lives within close proximity of the proposed development and 
asked to be recused from discussion and action on the item. 
 
[Mr. Edmunds exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed site condominium development and reported the 
project meets all the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Carlisle recommended 
approval conditioned on the removal of the ‘eyebrow’ along the curve and redistributing 
the 55 spruce trees along the entire length of Rochester Road. 
 
Joseph Maniaci of Mondrian Properties and Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering 
were present. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

Resolution # PC-2013-07-057 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Adria Estates Site 
Condominium, 7 units/lots, East side of Rochester, South of Square Lake, Section 11, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 
 
1. Remove “eyebrow” along curve; and 
2. Redistribute the 55 spruce trees along entire length of Rochester Road 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Strat, Tagle 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

[Mr. Edmunds returned to the meeting.] 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments relating to: 

 Residential garages as social centers. 
 Development of challenging sites; protection of negative impact on neighbors. 

 
 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 7:44 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 07 09 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on July 9, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Robert Schultz 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-053 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-054 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 25, 2013 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Strat 
Abstain: Tagle 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
City Manager Brian Kischnick introduced himself and his family. 

 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 744) – Proposed Belleclaire 

Condominiums, East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of Lamb (part of 4210 
Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family 
Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed rezoning application.  He reported the rezoning 
request is consistent with the Master Plan and complies with the surrounding zoning and 
land uses.  Mr. Carlisle stated support for the rezoning request. 
 
Joseph Maniaci of Mondrian Properties and Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering 
were present.  Mr. Maniaci briefly addressed stormwater management for the proposed 
condominium development. 
 
Several members applauded the petitioner for his interest and investment in the City. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-055 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to RT rezoning request, located on the east side of Rochester Road, north 
of Wattles, south side of Lamb Road, part of 4210 Rochester Road, in Section 14, being 
approximately 1.084 acres in size, be approved. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 986) – Proposed MJR Theatres 

Troy Grand Cinema 16, Southeast Corner of Maple and Livernois (100 E Maple), 
Section 34, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave an overall review of his report prepared for the proposed MJR 
Theatres.  Mr. Carlisle addressed: 

 Building placement. 
 Traffic studies. 
 Pedestrian access. 
 Parking requirements, parking deviation. 
 Landscaping, screening along Livernois. 
 Photometric plan. 

 
Mr. Carlisle stated he and City staff worked diligently with the applicant to address 
concerns prior to consideration of the Board this evening.  He strongly supports the 
proposed development and recommends preliminary approval of the site plan with the 
six conditions as specified in his report, dated July 2, 2013. 
 
Michael Mihalich, founder and CEO of MJR Digital Cinemas, was present.  Mr. Mihalich 
said the conditions to site plan approval would be met.  He said they are on a fast track 
and anxious to hit ground.  Mr. Mihalich briefly addressed the use of bicycle racks. 
 
Brent LaVanway of Boss Engineering addressed stormwater management. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Bruce Gershenson, representing the property owners, said they are very pleased and very 
lucky to have MJR coming in.  He said it will be a tremendous boon to the area. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-07-056 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces for the proposed MJR Theatres Troy Grand Cinema 
16 to 770 when a total of 1,067 spaces are required on the site based on the off-street 
parking space requirements for movie theaters.  This 297-space reduction maintains a 
ratio of 1 space per 4 seats which meets industry standards and is sufficient to meet 
parking demands on similar sites in Michigan, as described in a parking study submitted 
by the petitioner.  This reduction meets the standards of Section 13.06; and, 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JULY 9, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 
8 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed MJR Theatres Troy Grand 
Cinema 16, located on the southeast corner of Maple and Livernois (100 E Maple), 
Section 34, within the MR (Maple Road) district, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. Install right-in/right-out traffic divider at the westernmost entrance along Maple Road 
2. Provide an 8-foot sidewalk along Maple and Livernois 
3. Increase internal pedestrian spine sidewalk to 6-feet 
4. Provide tree preservation plan  
5. Submit fixtures and detailed Photometric Plan 
6. Provide parking lot screening along Livernois through a hedge row or screen wall 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Adria Estates Site Condominium, 7 

units/lots, East side of Rochester, South of Square Lake, Section 11, Currently Zoned 
R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Edmunds said he lives within close proximity of the proposed development and 
announced he was recusing himself from discussion and action on the item. 
 
[Mr. Edmunds exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed site condominium development and reported the 
project meets all the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Carlisle recommended 
approval conditioned on the removal of the ‘eyebrow’ along the curve and redistributing 
the 55 spruce trees along the entire length of Rochester Road. 
 
Joseph Maniaci of Mondrian Properties and Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering 
were present. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 





Traffic Committee Minutes – July 17, 2013  DRAFT 

Page 1 of 6 
 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, July 17, 2013 in 
the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting 
to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
PRESENT:  Sarah Binkowski 
    Ted Halsey 
    Richard Kilmer 
    Al Petrulis 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
 
ABSENT:  Stevan Popovic     
 
Also present: Mary Lynn & Adam M. Bowen, 3888 Gatwick Drive 
    William & Gail Wilde, 2412 Wembley 
    Don Wanner, Wanner Prop., LLC, PO Box 81212, Rochester, MI 48308 
    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
     
2. Minutes – June 19, 2013 
 
RESOLUTION # 2013-07-10 
  
Moved by Halsey  
Seconded by Kilmer 
 
To approve the June 19, 2013 minutes as printed. 
 
YES:   All-5 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  Popovic 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
3.  Request for Sidewalk Waiver on John R Road abutting the property located in 

the John Arbor Subdivsion (Parcel # 88-20-01-112-014) 
 
Item #3 and #4 were addressed at the same time by the petitioner and the Committee. 
 
Donald Wanner spoke at the meeting and reiterated his request for a waiver of the 
sidewalk required on John R Road abutting the property located in the John Arbor 
Subdivision (Parcel #88-20-01-112-014). 
 
Petitioner stated that while the sidewalk can be installed with the building of the homes, 
the road construction on John R may damage, require removal or even change grade in 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01f



Traffic Committee Minutes – July 17, 2013  DRAFT 

Page 2 of 6 
 

final grading”.   
 
Mr. Wanner, as the builder, is requesting that the sidewalk be waived and he will provide 
the city a check in the amount of $5,308.00 for the future construction of the sidewalk.  
These funds would be transferred to the Capital Fund and applied to the future widening 
and reconstruction project. 
 
The John R widening and reconstruction project is anticipated to begin in the winter of 
2015/16 and will construct a new 5-lane road with eight (8) foot wide sidewalks between 
Square Lake and South Boulevard. 
 
Mr. Ziegenfelder reiterated his support for sidewalks at all locations in the City. 
 
Mr. Kilmer asked about the John R schedule and funding.  The projects are currently in 
final design and it is still undecided if both projects will be bid and constructed as one large 
construction project or if they will be built one mile at a time starting in the winter of 2015.  
Funding is approved for John R, Long Lake to Square Lake in 2015 and for John R, 
Square Lake to South Boulevard in 2016. 
 
Mr. Halsey discussed the cash in escrow to be deposited by the builder.  The builder will 
deposit $5,308.00 with the City and these funds will be transferred to the Capital fund to 
offset the cost of the sidewalk when built with the road project. 
 
Ms. Binkowski asked about utility relocations.  There will be significant utility relocations as 
part of the road reconstruction and proposed locations have not been identified by the 
individual utility companies at this time. 
 
General discussion of the sidewalk waiver process followed. 
 
There were no other members of the public that made comments.   
 
RESOLUTION # 2013-07-11 
  
Moved by Halsey  
Seconded by Kilmer 
 
WHEREAS, City of Troy Ordinances, Chapter 34 allows the Traffic Committee to grant 
waivers of the City of Troy Design Standards for Sidewalks upon a demonstration of 
necessity; and 
 
WHEREAS, Donald Wanner has requested a waiver of the requirement to construct 
sidewalk due to the future John R widening project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Traffic Committee has determined the following: 
 

a. A waiver will not impair the public health, safety or general welfare of 



Traffic Committee Minutes – July 17, 2013  DRAFT 

Page 3 of 6 
 

the inhabitants of the City and will not unreasonably diminish or 
impair established property values within the surrounding area, and 

 
b. A strict application of the requirements to construct a sidewalk would 

result in practical difficulties to, or undue hardship upon, the owners, 
and 

 
c. The construction of a new sidewalk would lead nowhere and connect 

to no other walk, and thus will not serve the purpose of a pedestrian 
travel-way. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee grants a waiver of 
the sidewalk requirement on John R Road abutting the property located in the John 
Arbor Subdivision (Parcel #88-20-01-112-014), contingent upon the submittal of cash 
or a check in the amount of $5,308.00 by the applicant. 

 
YES:   All-5 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  Popovic 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
4.  Request for Sidewalk Waiver on John R Road abutting the property located in 

the John Arbor Subdivsion (Parcel # 88-20-01-112-016) 
 
Item #3 and #4 were addressed at the same time by the petitioner and the Committee. 
 
Donald Wanner spoke at the meeting and reiterated his request for a waiver of the 
sidewalk required on John R Road abutting the property located in the John Arbor 
Subdivision (Parcel #88-20-01-112-016). 
 
Petitioner stated that while the sidewalk can be installed with the building of the homes, 
the road construction on John R may damage, require removal or even change grade in 
final grading”.   
 
Mr. Wanner, as the builder, is requesting that the sidewalk be waived and he will provide 
the city a check in the amount of $5,308.00 for the future construction of the sidewalk.  
These funds would be transferred to the Capital Fund and applied to the future widening 
and reconstruction project. 
 
The John R widening and reconstruction project is anticipated to begin in the winter of 
2015/16 and will construct a new 5-lane road with eight (8) foot wide sidewalks between 
Square Lake and South Boulevard. 
 
Mr. Ziegenfelder reiterated his support for sidewalks at all locations in the City. 
 
Mr. Kilmer asked about the John R schedule and funding.  The projects are currently in 



Traffic Committee Minutes – July 17, 2013  DRAFT 

Page 4 of 6 
 

final design and it is still undecided if both projects will be bid and constructed as one large 
construction project or if they will be built one mile at a time starting in the winter of 2015.  
Funding is approved for John R, Long Lake to Square Lake in 2015 and for John R, 
Square Lake to South Boulevard in 2016. 
 
Mr. Halsey discussed the cash in escrow to be deposited by the builder.  The builder will 
deposit $5,308.00 with the City and these funds will be transferred to the Capital fund to 
offset the cost of the sidewalk when built with the road project. 
 
Ms. Binkowski asked about utility relocations.  There will be significant utility relocations as 
part of the road reconstruction and proposed locations have not been identified by the 
individual utility companies at this time. 
 
General discussion of the sidewalk waiver process followed. 
 
There were no other members of the public that made comments.   
 
RESOLUTION # 2013-07-12 
  
Moved by Halsey  
Seconded by Kilmer 
 
WHEREAS, City of Troy Ordinances, Chapter 34 allows the Traffic Committee to grant 
waivers of the City of Troy Design Standards for Sidewalks upon a demonstration of 
necessity; and 
 
WHEREAS, Donald Wanner has requested a waiver of the requirement to construct 
sidewalk due to the future John R widening project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Traffic Committee has determined the following: 
 

a. A waiver will not impair the public health, safety or general welfare of 
the inhabitants of the City and will not unreasonably diminish or 
impair established property values within the surrounding area, and 

 
b. A strict application of the requirements to construct a sidewalk would 

result in practical difficulties to, or undue hardship upon, the owners, 
and 

 
c. The construction of a new sidewalk would lead nowhere and connect 

to no other walk, and thus will not serve the purpose of a pedestrian 
travel-way. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee grants a waiver of 
the sidewalk requirement on John R Road abutting the property located in the John 
Arbor Subdivision (Parcel #88-20-01-112-016), contingent upon the submittal of cash 



Traffic Committee Minutes – July 17, 2013  DRAFT 

Page 5 of 6 
 

or a check in the amount of $5,308.00 by the applicant. 
 
YES:   All-5 
NO:   None 
ABSENT:  Popovic 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5. Request for No Parking Zone – Beach Road, east side, from the south property 

line of 2412 Wembley to the north property line of 2412 Wembley. 
 
The City of Troy Parks Division requests that a No Parking Zone be established along the 
east side of Beach Road, from the south property line of 2412 Wembley to the north 
property line of 2412 Wembley. 
 
The entrance to Schroeder Park is a natural area and not well identified for individuals who 
may not be familiar with the area.  Often cars park along the east side of Beach Road, 
blocking the entrance to the park which prevents the Parks Division from gaining access. 
 
William Wilde of 2412 Wembley spoke in opposition to the change.  Mr. Wilde has 
concerns relative to the use of the park.  Ever since the entrance to the park was created 
there has been an issue with people parking on Beach Road.  Mr. Wilde believes that 
there could be a better entrance to the park for residents as well as the City’s tree and 
grass cutting contractors.  Currently, large equipment is brought in to the park site from the 
end of the cul-de-sac adjacent to the park.  He thought that if a No Parking zone was to be 
established that the entire street should be posted as No Parking to avoid moving the 
issue further to the north or south. 
 
Mr. Kilmer has been to the site on a few occasions and asked about a red truck that parks 
in the area (it was identified as a neighbors vehicle). 
 
Mr. Petrulis stated that there are three (3) entrances to the park from Beach and asked 
why they could not be utilized.   
 
Mr. Halsey asked if DPW could work with the Troy School District to secure access from 
the school property.  Mr. Halsey also asked if the No Parking zone should be for a larger 
area. 
 
Parks Division representatives were not in attendance at the meeting.  Due to the fact that 
several questions could not be answered and the opposition from Mr. Wilde who is directly 
across from the requested No Parking Zone, the item was tabled until the September 
Traffic Committee meeting or until a staff member responsible for the park could be in 
attendance at a future Traffic Committee meeting. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2013-07-13 
 
Moved by Binkowski 



Traffic Committee Minutes – July 17, 2013  DRAFT 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Seconded by Kilmer 
 
RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee tables the item until the September 18, 2013 
meeting or until a staff member responsible for park maintenance can be in attendance. 
 
YES:   5 
NO:   None 
ABSENT: Popovic 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5. Public Comment 
 
Mary Lynn Bowen had questions about various topics including the 7-11 at Crooks and 
Wattles and Tim Hortons on southbound Rochester, across from Torpey.  She did state 
that the traffic situation on Torpey/Boyd was much improved with the changes made last 
year.  Traffic to and from the International Academy moved efficiently with the time 
changes and modifications made by the City and school. 
 
6. Other Business 
 
Mr. Kilmer asked about the status of speed limit signs in the Rockfield area.  Subsequent 
to the meeting Traffic Engineering requested that additional speed limit signs be placed on 
Hamman, Eleanor and Rockfield.  DPW has entered a service request and the signs 
should be in place by early August. 
 
7. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.  
 
                                          ___        
Pete Ziegenfelder, Chairperson    Bill Huotari, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2013\7_July 17\Minutes_20130717_DRAFT.docx 



stewartc
Text Box
O-02a













stewartc
Text Box
O-03a



stewartc
Text Box
O-03b



stewartc
Text Box
O-03c



stewartc
Text Box
O-03d



stewartc
Text Box
O-03e



Troy Public Library                                       
510 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084                          

(248) 524-3538               

 
 
 

 

 

 ...Today The City of Tomorrow... 

www.troymi.gov 
 

The Honorable Dane Slater, Mayor  
& Troy City Council 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI  48084 
 
July 30, 2013 
 
Dear Mayor Slater and City Council members, 
 
I wanted to let you know how much help Cindy Stewart, Shawn Polito, and Dan Sigler were in putting 
together Troy Public Library’s panel discussion, “What Employers Really Want.”  I contacted Cindy 
about recording the session for WTRY, Troy’s cable channel, and she and her staff made it happen.  
 
Fifty-one people attended the program, which was also recorded for the City of Troy’s YouTube 
channel, and for viewing on WTRY.  The program is part of the Library’s “Computer Skills for the Job 
Seekers” series, which is normally limited to 16 people. Recording the session for the City’s YouTube 
channel, as well as broadcasting it on WTRY, makes the content accessible to the entire community, 
and allows everyone to benefit by the information.  
 
Cindy, Shawn and Dan were well organized, very professional, and offered some great tips to help 
make the program more dynamic, especially the interaction with the panelists. I appreciate their help 
and support, because without them, it would not be available to a wider audience.  
 
Programs like this provide valuable information to assist with skill building and to enrich people’s 
lives—this is what Troy Public Library is all about. I am so pleased we were able to offer this program 
to the community, and hope to run it again in the near future.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Cathleen Russ 
Troy Library Director 
 
 
 
Cc: Brian Kischnick, Troy City Manager 
 Mark Miller, Economic & Community Development Director  
 

stewartc
Text Box
O-03f



Troy Public Library                                       
510 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084                          

(248) 524-3538               

 
 
 

 

 

 ...Today The City of Tomorrow... 

www.troymi.gov 
 

The Honorable Dane Slater, Mayor  
& Troy City Council 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI  48084 
 
July 30, 2013 
 
Dear Mayor Slater and City Council members, 
 
I wanted to let you know how much I appreciate City Manager Brian Kischnick’s time and expertise in 
participating on Troy Public Library’s panel discussion, “What Employers Really Want.”  I’ve received 
such positive feedback already, and the discussion just ended 3 hours ago! Fifty-one people attended 
the program, which was also recorded for the City of Troy’s YouTube channel, and for viewing on 
Troy Cable.  
 
Brian did a fabulous job as a panelist! His information about what employers are looking for, in a job 
candidate and during an interview, was presented positively, constructively, and in such a way that it 
would assist anyone looking for a job in any industry. He was professional, open, and approachable, 
and stressed honesty, transparency, and passion for your work.  
 
Also, it was very kind of Brian to stay after the program ended to talk to people who had queued up to 
speak with him. Many people stopped me to say that they appreciated the opportunity to hear from 
Brian and to get to know him, and how much they appreciated his participation in the program.  
 
Programs like this provide valuable information to assist with skill building and to enrich people’s 
lives—this is what Troy Public Library is all about. I am so pleased we were able to offer this program 
to the community, and hope to run it again in the near future.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Cathleen Russ 
Troy Library Director 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
O-03g



stewartc
Text Box
O-03h



stewartc
Text Box
O-05




	August 12, 2013 City Council Agenda
	Cover Memorandum
	Vision Statement and Goals
	Agenda: Return to 1st Page
	Explanation Booklet: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:  Pastor Dan Lewis From Troy Christian Chapel
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the Months of March & April 2013, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will Present a Check in the Amount of $704 to Terry Kennedy, Administrative Coordinator for Gift of ...
	C-2 Congratulations to Jeanette Menig, HR Specialist, on Achieving the Designation of International Public Management Association Certified Professional (IPMA-CP)  (Introduced by:  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director)
	C-3 Transit Center Status Update – August 2013 (Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City Engineer)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Proposed Amendments – TDDA Tax Increment Financing Plan (Introduced by: Terence M. Donnelly, Bond Counsel)
	E-2 Rezoning Application File Number Z 744 – Proposed Belleclaire Condominiums, East Side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South Side of Lamb (Part of 4210 Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family Attached R...

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – Parks and Recreation Board
	I-3 Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Contract Ratification – Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2013-2015 (Introduced by:  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director)

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – July 22, 2013

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Portable Conveyor

	J-5 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions
	J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Hillmore Street Sanitary Sewer Extension – Project 13.401.13
	J-7 Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund
	J-8 Termination of Planned Unit Development (PUD) Agreement – Troy Plaza PUD – West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King – Section 8

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Downtown Development Authority-Final – May 15, 2013
	b) Downtown Development Authority-Final – June 19, 2013
	c) Traffic Committee-Final – June 19, 2013
	d) Planning Commission-Draft – July 9, 2013
	e) Planning Commission-Final – July 9, 2013
	f) Traffic Commission-Draft – July 17, 2013

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) 2013 Mid-Year Calls for Police Service Report

	O-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Chief Mayer for Outstanding Service by Police Officer John Julian
	b) To Brian Kischnick from Kathleen Donovan, Emerald Lakes Village Homeowners Association regarding Excellent Service Provided by the DPW
	c) To Brian Kischnick from Bharatiya Temple
	d) To the City of Troy and Public Works Department from Carol Price regarding Storm Cleanup
	e) To Tim Richnak from Kathleen Donovan, Emerald Lakes Village Homeowners Association regarding Excellent Service Provided by the DPW
	f) To Mayor and Council from Cathleen Russ, Library Director regarding Assistance from Community Affairs
	g) To Mayor and Council from Cathleen Russ, Library Director regarding Assistance from Brian Kischnick, City Manager
	h) To Chief William Nelson from Richard Dylewski of the Clawson Fire Department regarding the Troy Fire Department Participation in the Clawson 4th of July Parade

	O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	O-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of the DTE Gas Company Case No U-17216 on August 15, 2013

	P. STUDY ITEMS:
	P-1  No Study Items

	Q. CLOSED SESSION:
	Q-1 Closed Session

	R. ADJOURNMENT:
	Monday, August 26, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, September 9, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, September 23, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, October 7, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, October 21, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, November 11, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, November 25, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, December 2, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, December 16, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Attachments.pdf
	20130812 Agenda - C-03  Transit Center Status Report - August 2013.pdf
	20130812 Agenda - E-02  Resolution Attachment - Site Plan & Rezoning Plan
	20130812 Agenda - E-02  Rezoning Application File Number Z 744 - Belleclaire Condominiums - Section 14
	20130812 Agenda - I-03  Request for Closed Session - City Attorney Evaluation
	20130812 Agenda - I-04  Contract Ratification - Michigan Association of Police (MAP) 2013-2015
	20130812 Agenda - J-02a  City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft - July 22, 2013
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Troy High School 2013 Girls Varsity Soccer Team Division Champions Presentation (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director)
	C-2 Carla Reeb, Troy Nature Center Executive Director will Present Information on the Troy Nature Center Open House/Ice Cream Social Sponsored by the Troy Nature Society (No backup)
	C-3 Transit Center Status Report – July 2013 (Introduced by:  Steven Vandette, City Engineer)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Liquor Advisory Committee; Traffic Committee
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-3 No Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Contract Ratification – Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) (City Administration Removed the Item From the Agenda)

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Special Meeting Minutes-Draft – July 8, 2013
	b) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – July 8, 2013

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
	a) Certificate of Recognition Troy High School 2013 Girls Varsity Soccer Team

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Fitness Equipment

	J-5 Medi-Go Plus Service Agreement
	J-6 Addendum #1 – Contract 13-1 – Square Lake Road Mill and Asphalt Overlay
	J-7 Amendment #2 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz, and McCliment Inc. for Engineering Services for the John R, Long Lake to Square Lake Reconstruction Project No. 02.203.5
	J-8 Amendment #2 – Preliminary Engineering Agreement with Orchard, Hiltz, and McCliment Inc. for Engineering Services for the John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard Reconstruction Project No. 02.204.5
	J-9 Acquisition of Property as a Result of Foreclosure for Non-Payment of Property Taxes

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) August 12, 2013 – Rezoning Application File Z 744 – Proposed Belleclaire Condominiums, East Side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South Side of Lamb (Part of 4210 Rochester), Section 14, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family ...
	b) August 12, 2013 – Proposed Amendments to Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Development and Tax Increment Financing Plan

	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – May 21, 2013
	b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – June 5, 2013
	c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final – June 12, 2013
	d) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft – June 25, 2013
	e) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final – June 25, 2013
	f) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – July 10, 2013

	O-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted
	O-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) The South Oakland Intelligence Consortium (SONIC) Enjoyed Working with the Troy Special Investigations Unit (SIU)
	b) To Paul Evans and Gary Bowers From April Church Regarding Wonderful Service
	c) To Paul Evans From Debbie Schuh Regarding Quick Service
	d) To Mayor, City Council and City Manager From Carol Russell Regarding Expedient Response to Residents
	e) To Sam Lamerato From Kathy Leenhouts, City of Clawson
	f) To Chief Gary Mayer From John Reynolds From Delphi
	g) To City Council From Genisys Credit Union Regarding Being Named One of the Best Towns For Families

	O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	O-5 2013 Second Quarter Litigation Report
	O-6 Troy Named One of America’s Top 10 Best Towns for Families by Family Circle Magazine

	P. STUDY ITEMS:
	P-1  No Study Items

	Q. CLOSED SESSION:
	Q-1 No Closed Session Requested

	R. ADJOURNMENT:

	20130812 Agenda - J-04a  SPR2  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Portable Conveyor
	Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 Portable Conveyor Memo-ITB-COT 13-22
	ITB-COT 13-22 Portable Conveyor Bid Tab
	Sheet1


	20130812 Agenda - J-05  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions
	20130812 Agenda - J-06  Private Agreement - Hillmore Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project No 13 401 3
	20130812 Agenda - J-07  Authorization to Request Reimbursement - Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund
	20130812 Agenda - J-08  Termination of Planned Unit Development (PUD) Agreement - Troy Plaza PUD - Section 8
	20130812 Agenda - O-01a  Downtown Development Authority-Final - May 15, 2013
	20130812 Agenda - O-01b  Downtown Development Authority-Final - June 19 2013
	20130812 Agenda - O-01c  Traffic Committee-Final - June 19, 2013
	20130812 Agenda - O-01d  Planning Commission-Draft - July 9, 2013
	20130812 Agenda - O-01e  Planning Commission-Final - July 9, 2013
	20130812 Agenda - O-01f  Traffic Commission-Draft - July 17, 2013
	20130812 Agenda - O-02a  2013 Mid-Year Calls for Police Service Report
	20130812 Agenda - O-03a  LOA to Chief Mayer for Outstanding Service by Police Officer John Julian
	20130812 Agenda - O-03b  LoA to Brian Kischnick from Kathleen Donovan, Emerald Lakes Village HOA Commending DPW
	20130812 Agenda - O-03c  LoA to Brian Kischnick from The Bharatiya Temple
	20130812 Agenda - O-03d  LoT to City of Troy and Public Works Department from Carol Price re Storm Cleanup
	20130812 Agenda - O-03e  LoT to Tim Richnak from Kathleen Donovan, Emerald Lakes Village Homeowners Association re Excellent Service Provided by the DPW
	20130812 Agenda - O-03f  LoA to Mayor and Council from Cathleen Russ, Library Director re Assistance from Community Affairs
	20130812 Agenda - O-03g  LoA to Mayor and Council from Cathleen Russ, Library Director re Assistance from Brian Kischnick, City Manager
	20130812 Agenda - O-03h  LoA to Chief Nelson From Clawson Fire Dept re Participation in Clawson 4th of July Parade
	20130812 Agenda - O-05  Notice of Hearing - DTE Case No U-17216
	20130812 Agenda - E-01  TDDA Amendments to the Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Authority.pdf
	08.12.13 - Attachment A DDA 7th Plan Amendment.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE
	A. Purpose of the Downtown Development Authority Act
	B. Creation of the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Troy
	C. Basis for the Tax Increment Financing Plan and Development Plan
	E. Reasons for Proposed Plan Amendments

	2013 PLAN AMENDMENTS
	I.  AMENDMENTS TO THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	1. DESIGNATION OF BOUNDARIES OF THE DEVELOPMENT AREA
	4. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT AREA
	Development Area


	II. AMENDMENTS TO TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN
	6. MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS

	III.  EFFECT OF 2013 AMENDMENTS TO DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN

	08.12.13 - res 2 Public Hearing - Troy Downtown Development Authority, Amendments to Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan and Amendments to Ordinance 78 and Ordinance 80.pdf
	1. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS – PURPOSE.  Bonds of the City aggregating the principal sum of not to exceed Fifteen Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($15,500,000) (the “Bonds”), as determined by the City Manager at the time of sale, shall be issued and sold pursuant to the provisions of Act 197, and other applicable statutory provisions, for the purpose of paying part of the cost of implementing the Plan and in connection therewith, refunding all of the outstanding DDA Bonds.
	2. BOND DETAILS.  The Bonds shall be designated “General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2013;” shall be dated as of the date of delivery thereof to the Underwriter (as hereinafter defined); shall be numbered from 1 upwards; shall be fully registered; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity at the option of the purchaser thereof; shall bear interest at a rate or rates not exceeding 8.00% per annum as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale, payable on each May 1 and November 1 as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; shall be mature on November 1 in such years and in such principal amounts as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; and shall be serial bonds and/or term bonds as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale.
	3. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST.  The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States.  Principal shall be payable upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds to the bond registrar and paying agent as they severally mature.  Interest shall be paid to the registered owner of each Bond as shown on the registration books at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding the month in which the interest payment is due.  Interest shall be paid when due by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent to the registered owner at the registered address.
	4. PRIOR REDEMPTION.  The Bonds shall be subject to mandatory and/or optional redemption prior to maturity if so determined by the City Manager at the time of sale and if so determined, upon such terms and conditions as shall be approved by the City Manager; provided, however, that the redemption premium to be payable in connection with any optional redemption of the Bonds shall not exceed 2% of the principal amount of any Bond to be redeemed.
	5. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.  Initially, one fully-registered Bond for each maturity, in the aggregate amount of such maturity, shall be issued in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) for the benefit of other parties (the “Participants”) in the book-entry-only transfer system of DTC.  In the event the City determines that it is in the best interest of the City not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that the interests of the holders of the Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of transfer is continued, the City may notify DTC and the bond registrar and paying agent, whereupon DTC will notify the Participants of the availability through DTC of Bond certificates.  In such event, the bond registrar and paying agent shall deliver, transfer and exchange Bond certificates as requested by DTC and any Participant or “beneficial owner” in appropriate amounts in accordance with this resolution.  DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and the bond registrar and paying agent and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law or the City may determine that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties and may so advise DTC.  In either such event, the City shall use reasonable efforts to locate another securities depository.  Under such circumstances (if there is no successor securities depository), the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall be obligated to deliver Bond certificates in accordance with the procedures established by this resolution.  In the event Bond certificates are issued, the provisions of this resolution shall apply to, among other things, the transfer and exchange of such certificates and the method of payment of principal of and interest on such certificates.  Whenever DTC requests the City and the bond registrar and paying agent to do so, the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the Bonds to any Participant having Bonds credited to its DTC account or to arrange for another securities depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Bonds.
	6. BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT. The City Manager shall designate, and may enter into an agreement with, a bond registrar and paying agent for the Bonds which shall be a bank or trust company located in the State of Michigan that is qualified to act in such capacity under the laws of the United States of America or the State of Michigan.  The City Manager from time to time as required may designate a similarly qualified successor bond registrar and paying agent.
	7. EXECUTION, AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF BONDS.  The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized representative of the bond registrar and paying agent, and the seal of the City (or a facsimile thereof) shall be impressed or imprinted on the Bonds.  After the Bonds have been executed and authenticated for delivery to the original purchaser thereof, they shall be delivered by the City Treasurer or the City Manager to the purchaser of the Bonds upon receipt of the purchase price.  Additional Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk may be delivered to the bond registrar and paying agent for authentication and delivery in connection with the exchange or transfer of the Bonds.  The bond registrar and paying agent shall indicate on each Bond the date of its authentication.
	8. EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF BONDS.  Any Bond, upon surrender thereof to the bond registrar and paying agent with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney, at the option of the registered owner thereof, may be exchanged for Bonds of any other authorized denominations of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as the surrendered Bond.
	9. FORM OF BONDS.  The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form:
	10.  APPROVAL OF ESTIMATE OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES.  The estimate of the Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue available under Section 11 of Act 197 to be available for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, as approved by the DDA and as set forth in attached Exhibit A, is approved.
	11. SECURITY.  The Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue to be available to the DDA under Section 11 of Act 197 are pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds.  The Bonds shall also be limited tax general obligations of the City.  The full faith and credit of the City are also pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same shall become due.  Each year the City shall be obligated, as a first budget obligation, to advance moneys from its general funds or to levy ad valorem property taxes on all taxable property within its corporate boundaries to pay such principal and interest as the same become due in the event and to the extent that the Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue to be available to the DDA under Section 11 of Act 197 are not sufficient to make such payment.    The ability of the City to raise funds to pay such amounts is subject to applicable constitutional, statutory and charter limitations on the taxing power of the City.  
	12. DEFEASANCE.  In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or a combination thereof, the principal of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come due at times and in amounts sufficient to pay, at maturity or irrevocable call for earlier optional redemption, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, shall have been deposited in trust, this resolution shall be defeased and the owners of the Bonds shall have no further rights under this resolution except to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds from the cash or securities deposited in trust and the interest and gains thereon and to transfer and exchange Bonds as provided herein.
	13. PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND.  There is hereby established for the Bonds a Principal and Interest Fund that shall be either a separate fund or part of a common fund as permitted by law.  From the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, there shall be set aside in the Principal and Interest Fund any accrued interest received from the purchaser at the time of delivery of the same.  The Tax Increment Revenues and other revenue available to the DDA under Section 11 of Act 197 and other available moneys of the City, if any, to be used to pay the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be deposited in the Principal and Interest Fund and so long as the principal or interest on the Bonds remain unpaid, no moneys shall be withdrawn from such fund except to pay such principal and interest or to pay from any investment earnings on such fund the fees and expenses of the bond registrar and paying agent.
	14. PAYMENT OF COSTS OF ISSUANCE -- ESCROW FUND.  The remainder of the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used, together with available moneys of the DDA, if any, to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds and to refund the DDA Bonds.  After the costs of issuance have been paid or provided for the remaining proceeds and DDA moneys, in an amount determined by the City Manager at the time of sale of the Bonds, shall be used to establish an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”) consisting of cash and investments in direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America or other obligations the principal of and interest on which are fully secured by the foregoing and used to pay the principal of, interest on and redemption premiums, if any, on the Prior Bonds.  The Escrow Fund shall be held by an escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) pursuant to an Escrow Agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”), which irrevocably shall direct the Escrow Agent to take all necessary steps to pay the principal of and interest on the Prior Bonds being refunded when due and to call such Prior Bonds for redemption at such time as shall be determined in the Escrow Agreement.  The City Manager is authorized to select the Escrow Agent and enter into the Escrow Agreement on behalf of the City.  The amounts held in the Escrow Fund shall be such that the cash and the investments and the income received on the investments will be sufficient without reinvestment to pay the principal of, interest on and redemption premiums, if any, on the DDA Bonds when due at maturity or call for redemption as required by the Escrow Agreement.
	15. APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY.  The issuance and sale of the Bonds shall be subject to permission being granted therefor by the Department of Treasury of the State of Michigan as provided in Act 34.  If necessary, the City Manager is authorized to file an application with the Department of Treasury for approval of the Bonds.
	16. SALE, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF BONDS.  The Bonds shall be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale as hereinafter provided, and it is hereby determined that such negotiated sale is in the best interests of the City and is calculated to provide the maximum flexibility in pricing the Bonds and to result in the lowest interest cost to the City.  The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Bond Purchase Agreement with Fifth Third Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriter”), which Bond Purchase Agreement shall set forth the principal amount of the Bonds, principal maturities and dates, interest rates and interest payment dates, redemption provisions, if any, purchase price to be paid by the Underwriter with respect to the Bonds and such other terms and provisions as the City Manager determines to be necessary or appropriate in connection with the sale of the Bonds.  The Bond Purchase Agreement and the terms of the Bonds set forth therein shall be approved by an order adopted by the City Manager at the time of the sale of the Bonds.  The Mayor, the City Clerk, the City Manager and the City Treasurer are each hereby authorized to do all things necessary to effectuate the sale, issuance, delivery, transfer and exchange of the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this resolution.  In making the determination in the order authorizing the sale of the Bonds and in the Bond Purchase Agreement with respect to principal maturities and dates, interest rates, purchase price of the Bonds and compensation to be paid to the Underwriter, the City Manager shall be limited as follows:
	17. REPLACEMENT OF BONDS.  Upon receipt by the City Clerk of proof of ownership of an unmatured Bond, of satisfactory evidence that the Bond has been lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken and of security or indemnity that complies with applicable law and is satisfactory to the City Clerk, the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and paying agent to deliver a new executed Bond to replace the Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken in compliance with applicable law.  In the event an outstanding matured Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and paying agent to pay the Bond without presentation upon the receipt of the same documentation required for the delivery of a replacement Bond.  The bond registrar and paying agent, for each new Bond delivered or paid without presentation as provided above, shall require the payment of expenses, including counsel fees, which may be incurred by the bond registrar and paying agent and the City in the premises.  Any Bond delivered pursuant to the provisions of this Section 17 in lieu of any Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken shall be of the same form and tenor and be secured in the same manner as the Bond in substitution for which such Bond was delivered.
	18. TAX COVENANT.  The City covenants to comply with all applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), necessary to assure that the interest on the Bonds will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The Mayor, the City Clerk, the City Manager, the City Treasurer and other appropriate officials of the City are authorized to do all things necessary (including the making of such covenants of the City as shall be appropriate) to assure that the interest on the Bonds will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
	19. OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  The City Manager is authorized to cause the preparation of an official statement for the Bonds for purposes of enabling compliance with Rule 15c212 issued under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”) and to do all other things necessary to enable compliance with the Rule.  After the award of the Bonds, the City will provide copies of a “final official statement” (as defined in paragraph (e)(3) of the Rule) on a timely basis and in reasonable quantity as requested by the Underwriter to enable the Underwriter to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
	20. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are authorized to execute and deliver in the name and on behalf of the City a continuing disclosure certificate to comply with the requirements for a continuing disclosure undertaking of the City pursuant to paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, and amendments to such certificate from time to time in accordance with the terms of such certificate (the certificate and any amendments thereto are collectively referred to herein as the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”).  The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.
	21. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.  The following are appointed to act in the following capacities with respect to the Bonds:
	22. CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they may be in conflict herewith are rescinded.






